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EMWD'’s Board of Directors %=
supported the acceleration of its
Automated Metering Infrastruc-
ture program through additional

funding in recent years to help
expedite the years-long project

that involved upgrading more
_ than 150,000 water meters.
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November 13, 2019

Board of Directors
Eastern Municipal Water District

We are pleased to present the Eastern Municipal Water District’s (District) Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. State law and debt covenants require
that the District publish, within six months and 180 days of the close of each fiscal year, respectively, a
complete set of audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement and to
provide the Board of Directors (Board), the public and other interested parties these basic financial
statements.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

Davis Farr LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has issued an unmodified opinion on the
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019. The independent auditors’ report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Included are all disclosures management believes necessary to enhance your understanding of the
financial condition of the District. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’'s MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors in the financial section of this
report.

2270 Trumble Road ® P.O.Box 8300 ¢ Perris, CA 92572-8300
T 951.928.3777 * F 951.928.6177 www.emwd.org



PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT

The Eastern Municipal Water District was incorporated in 1950 under the Municipal Water District Act of 1911 and the
provisions of the California Water Code. lts primary purpose was to import Colorado River water to its service area to
augment local water supplies. Prior to the District’s formation, the local water supply was primarily from groundwater wells.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by the public for a four-year term, each
representing comparably sized districts based on population. This five-member Board is responsible to the general
public within the District for proper conduct of District affairs. The District is a member of the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California (MWD), a cooperative organization of twenty-six member agencies responsible for
providing imported water to Southern California.

. fon The District is located in Southern California and its service area lies
within western Riverside County, encompassing approximately 555
square miles. In 1951, the District’s service area consisted of 86
. square miles. Today, growth has resulted from annexations
f\_,\ ranging in area from 1 to 72,000 acres. The assessed

valuation has grown from $72.0 million when formed

¥

|

to approximately $79.0 billion for this past fiscal

!_ year. The District is divided into separate regional

service areas for water service and sewer service.

Riverside County has a population of 2.5 million

people. Of this population, the District serves
approximately 839 thousand or 34.2 percent,
including the cities of Temecula, Murrieta,
Menifee, Hemet, San Jacinto, Moreno Valley,
Perris, Wildomar and unincorporated areas in
Riverside County. A map of the service area
is on page 17 of this report.

The mission of the District is to deliver value
to its customers and the communities it serves
by providing safe, reliable, economical and
environmentally sustainable water, wastewater and
recycled water services. It provides three primary
- products and services: potable water, wastewater
& ) .
e collection and treatment and recycled water.

The District's approximately 608 employees are responsible
for providing excellent customer service driven by its standards to
provide safe, reliable, economical and environmentally friendly services.



WATER SUPPLY AND RELIABILITY

The District’s total water supply includes 15 percent local groundwater, 49 percent imported water and 36 percent
recycled water. The sole source of the District's imported water is MWD.

The District has made significant efforts to provide a safe and reliable supply of water and diversify the sources of water.
In 2009, the District received 53 percent of its water through purchases from MWD, which in turn obtains its water
supply from two primary imported sources: the Colorado River via the Colorado River Aqueduct and the State Water
Project via the Edmund G. Brown California Aqueduct. |n 2019, the District’s level of imported water was 49 percent of
supply as a result of investments in local groundwater, desalination, and recycled water improvements.

Historical Water Supply Sources Current Water Supply Sources
(2009) (2019)
145,968 AF 132,400 AF

MWD 53% MWD 499
Desalinatiom

30; Local Desalination Local

a —
Groundwater

Groundwater

SEWER AND RECYCLED WATER SERVICES

For the purposes of transmission, treatment and disposal of wastewater, the District is divided into five sewer service
areas: Hemet/San Jacinto, Moreno Valley, Sun City, Temecula Valley, and Perris Valley. Each service area is served by
a single regional water reclamation facility (RWRF), for which methods of treatment vary. The facilities are capable of
treating 69 million gallons per day (MGD) of wastewater and serve approximately 839 thousand people. Customers’
monthly bills include a daily service charge based on household size, which covers the fixed and variable costs of
operating the sewer system and contributions to infrastructure replacement costs. They are linked through a network
of 1,831 miles of pipeline and 50 active lift stations.

The District currently generates approximately 45 MGD of effluent at its regional water

reclamation facilities. The District’s goal is to reuse 100 percent of the water from the

treatment plants and offer recycled water for sale to customers within the District’s

service area. In doing so, the District reduces the need to import water or to

use other local groundwater supplies. In 2019, approximately 25,811 acre feet
or 53.5 percent of recycled water produced was sold to customers. This was
lower than anticipated due to the unusually heavy rainfall amounts in the first
quarter of the calendar year 2019.




THE LOCAL ECONOMY

The District is located within Riverside
County which is the fourth largest county
in the State. Riverside County and San
Bernardino County comeprises the
Inland Empire which is one of the
fastest growing metropolitan areas
in the nation. The Inland Empire
covers approximately 27,000
square miles with a population
of about 4.5 million. Job
growth in the region

exceeded those of the State

and other areas in Southern

California from 2011 to 2015.

In 2018, the Inland Empire’s

job growth of 49,308 ranked
second after Los Angeles’
60,908 jobs and above San
Franciscos 33,067 jobs. The
region gained 352,208 local jobs
from 2011 to 2019 and is on track
to exceed the number of jobs during
the 2007 peak by 18.2 percent, while
unemployment is forecasted to stay low
at 4.2 percent. Sectors of employment gain
included distribution, transportation, health care,
construction and logistics.

The Inland Empire is an affordable housing alternative to the higher priced homes in the coastal regions of Southern
California and is expected to continue as the fastest growing part of Southern California over the next few years due
to homes having more space and being more affordable. The region has continued to see a steady increase in real
estate prices due to low inventory of houses for sale and increasing demand resulting from higher income and migration
to the region. The median price of homes has registered steady gains since the economic recovery began and as of
the fourth quarter of 2017, the area’s median home price was 9.0 percent higher than the prior year. As of the third
quarter of 2018, the Inland Empire’s 7 percent increase in home prices have outpaced neighboring regions, including Los
Angeles County, 5.6 percent, Orange County, 5.9 percent and the State, 5.9 percent. In the beginning of 2017, home
sales in Riverside County increased 9.9 percent and in San Bernardino, 6.7 percent. In 2018, home sales in the region
decreased 6.7 percent from 2017 due to lack of supply and higher mortgage rates. Non-residential construction, which
was depressed from 2009 to 2012, bounced back in 2013 with an increase of new investment in the retail and industrial
sectors with several large infrastructure projects and notable growth in the warehousing sector. Permitting for industrial
space grew the most in Riverside County, increasing 365 percent year to date through the second quarter of 2017.
During the first three quarters of 2018, the total value of building permits increased 20.5 percent.




Business activity in the Inland Empire advanced in the third quarter of 2018 and is projected to continue its growth in
the near future. From the third quarter of 2017 to the third quarter of 2018, the region has outperformed the nation
with business activity growing by 3.2 percent compared to 3.0 percent growth for the U.S. GDP. |n the third quarter of
2018, the Inland Empire’s business activity expanded at a 3.2 percent annualized rate only behind the U.S. GDP growth
rate of 3.5 percent. The construction sector had a strong year in 2017 and continues to grow in 2018 due to strong
demand for housing and other construction activities including building of roadways, other transportation projects and
massive e-commerce centers. Most e-commerce centers in Southern California are built in the Inland Empire, including
Amazon’s 10 e-commerce centers with two more to build.

Riverside County’s property assessment roll for the fiscal year 2019 has exceeded the record set in fiscal year 2008 with a
value of $286 billion, a 6.3 percent increase over fiscal year 2018. This is the sixth consecutive year of growth, exceeding
the County’s peak assessment roll of $242.9 billion in 2008.

The District's property assessment roll for its service areas increased $4.7 billion or 6.7 percent in fiscal year 2019.
Its service areas include the cities of Temecula, Murrieta, Menifee, Hemet, San Jacinto, and Moreno Valley, Perris,
Wildomar and unincorporated areas in Riverside County. The largest growth among the District's incorporated service
areas are in the cities of Perris, 10.9 percent; Menifee, 9.1 percent; and San Jacinto, 8.0 percent.

The District is conveniently accessible by truck and rail service from several significant national and international
cargo facilities including the Port of Los Angeles/Long Beach complex, Los Angeles International Airport, Ontario
International Airport, and Port of San Diego. Additionally, the March Air Reserve Base (March ARB), a 12 square-mile
airfield and logistics center, is located in the District.

SOUND FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRACTICES

The District continues to manage funds to ensure financial stability and demonstrate responsible stewardship
by sustaining reasonable rates for customers, containing costs through careful planning, preserving investments,
safeguarding reserves, and active debt management.

WATER AND SEWER RATES

In 2017, the District completed a cost of
service study resulting in a new rate structure,
moving from tiered water rates aligned to
indoor and outdoor water budgets to new
tiered water rates aligned to the District’s
sources of water supply. The objectives of
the study were to simplify and develop a
consistent rate structure for all customers, to
provide sufficient revenue for the District to

Indoor Usage Budget 0% Tier 1:

Persons x 55 GPD $1.07
Outdoor Usage Budget
Irrigated Area x ET Factor x [E{0bZ3

Conservation Factor

Tier 2:
$3.43

Within Budget

recover operations and maintenance costs EXCGSSiVG Use Tier 3.
incurred in providing water service and to 0% bud ’
proportionately allocate these costs among Up to 50% over budget $5.67

customers. This new water rate structure
was adopted by the Board in December 2017
with an effective date of January 1, 2018.

Wasteful Use Tier 4:
More than 50% over budget $11.59

Over Budget




The use of water budgets for the District’s residential customers was firstimplemented in 2009. These customers received
a monthly water budget allocation customized to meet their household and landscape irrigation needs. Effective
January 1, 2018, under the new rate structure, customers continued to receive water budgets based on household and
landscape size, however, these budgets no longer align with a specific rate.  The amount of water billed for each tier
is now based on the availability of the District’s water supply sources such as groundwater, treated groundwater and
imported water. All residential customers are billed at the low volume, Tier 1 rate for the first twenty percent of their
monthly budget, according to the proportional amount of local, low cost water supplies available. The remaining
portion of the water budget is billed at the Tier 2 budgeted rate for budgeted supplies and the Tier 3 and Tier 4 rates
cover usage in excess of the total budget. With the new rate structure, water efficient households realize cost savings
and customers who stay within their water budgets pay the lowest cost for water.

The Board approved increases in these charges recover the cost in the water rate structures’ three primary charges, the
daily service charge based on water meter size, the water supply and reliability capital charge that supports the District’s
ongoing capital projects and the water use or commodity rates charged for each unit of water used (tiered rate). The
impact to a typical water bill is approximately $2.50 per month in 2019 and $2.45 in 2020.

Effective January 1, 2019, sewer rates increased to recover the cost to collect, treat and recycle or dispose of wastewater.
The sewer system capital projects charge also increased to provide funds for future sewer system capital improvement
projects essential for maintaining the District’s four water reclamation facilities and meeting requlatory and environmental
requirements. The impact to a typical sewer bill is approximately $1.77 per month in 2019 and $.91 per month in 2020.

The District’s sewer rates are calculated using a baseline daily service charge and block factors based on household
occupancy. Residential customers are assigned from one to four sewer blocks depending on number of people in the
household. The new sewer rate structure better reflects the demands on the sewer system based on updated customer
data. Blocks 1 and 4 proportions are reduced and is expected to result in cost savings with a minimal increase in rates.

The chart below reflects the monthly charges for an average four-person household residential customer with an average
monthly consumption of eighteen billing units (ccf):

$120.00

Combined Bill - Residential Customer at 18 Billing Units

$100.00

$80.00

$60.00 - M Sewer

B Water
$40.00 -

$20.00 -

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
(Proj)




WATER USE EFFICIENCY

The District has established itself as a statewide leader in water use
efficiency and continues to promote water conservation through
investments in infrastructure, technology, education and community
outreach programs.

In 2009, the District first implemented the use of water budgets
for its residential customers. The tiered water rate structure
was designed to promote water conservation by encouraging
efficient water use and discouraging wasteful water usage.

All residential customers received a monthly water budget

allocation customized to meet their specific household and

landscape irrigation needs. The rate structure set budgets for

indoor usage, outdoor usage and usage in excess of the total
budget.

In 2017, the Board adopted a new water rate structure, adjusted
to meet new State standards that call for making water efficiency
a permanent way of life. The changes maintained the principles
behind the District’s rate structure, reflecting the cost of service while
rewarding customers who use less and penalize those who are wasteful.

In 2019, the District launched its WaterWise Plus program, a comprehensive and
forward thinking program designed to assist customers and partner agencies with
finding new and cost effective ways to become more water efficient. The program integrates
existing water use efficiency based programs with long-term solutions that are promoted regardless of drought conditions.
These programs help customers make lifestyle changes to their water use habits resulting in becoming more efficient with their
water use, gaining a better understanding of their water usage and making them better able to manage their monthly bills.

The District offers a wide range of programs for residential customers, including participation in the Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California’s turf removal rebate program, District offered water efficient devices and the
District’s Demonstration Garden which is available for customers to view to obtain ideas on various water efficient and
sustainable landscape options.

The District is also working with government agencies and the business community to develop long-term sustainable
approaches to see the benefits that the average residential customers may realize. It is partnering with the cities it
serves in introducing a landscape transformation program, promoting investments in climate appropriate landscaping
in commercial, industrial and institutional areas through turf replacement programs. The District is also partnering with
its local agricultural customers to better understand current irrigation practices and to incorporate programs that will
further assist local farmers in managing their water use.

The District is an industry leader in recycled water, one of the largest by-volume recyclers in the nation and one of
the few agencies that achieves 100 percent beneficial reuse. lts recycled water system receives and treats more than
45 million gallons of wastewater each day at its four operating regional treatment plants. About 75 percent of the
District's production is sold to agricultural, irrigation, landscaping and industrial customers. It also serves several schools,
parks, cities and county streetscaping, HOA landscape areas, golf courses, wetlands habitat areas and industrial cooling
towers. The District has the ability to store more than two 2 billion gallons of recycled water. With significant urban
development, it is prepared to manage the increase in recycled

water production and is securing the regions water
future through Water Banking and its
groundwater reliability efforts.




FINANCIAL PLANNING

The Board approves a biennial budget as a management tool. The biennial budget is developed with input from the
various departments within the organization and adopted prior to the start of each fiscal year. Monthly comparison
reports of budget to actual are prepared, and quarterly budget-to-actual results by system are provided to and discussed
with the Board, along with financial position and other key performance information.

The District prepares a five-year financial plan to anticipate funding needs, reserve levels, and expected impacts to rates.
A key component to the plan is the District's Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), which calls for total expenses for water,
sewer and recycled water facilities of approximately $398.3 million for the fiscal years 2020 through 2024. The CIP is
expected to be financed through a combination of property taxes, developer connection fees, rates and charges, publicly
financed bond proceeds, reserves, grants and low-interest loans from the California State Revolving Fund. The CIP is
modified on an annual basis to reflect updated assumptions regarding future growth within the District’s service area.

RESERVE POLICY

The District adopted a reserve policy, which states the purpose, source, and funding limits for each of its designated
reserves within its four main funds: operating, construction, debt service, and trust. The reserves are essential for
maintaining liquidity in the marketplace, which enables the District to access the lowest cost-of-capital borrowing
opportunities.

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE AND INVESTMENT POLICY

In 2013, the Board of Directors adopted an Administrative Code, which incorporates various policies and administrative
duties. The District previously adopted an Investment Policy, which was incorporated into the Administrative Code.
The District invests its funds in instruments permitted by California Government Code Sections 53601, et seq., and in
accordance with its Investment Policy. The investment objectives of the District are to first preserve capital, followed by
maintaining liquidity, and finally, maximizing the rate of return without compromising the first two objectives.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The District actively manages its debt portfolio, and seeks to minimize its total debt costs. This goal is achieved by
issuing both fixed and variable rate debt to fund its capital projects. The District has primarily issued certificates of
participation (COPs), revenue bonds (Bonds), and has borrowed from state revolving fund (SRF) loans to fund its
CIP. As of June 30, 2019, the District’s total revenue bonds and SRF loans outstanding was $952.7 million of which 63
percent were fixed interest rate, 30 percent were variable interest rate and 7 percent were synthetically fixed through
Swap agreements with Wells Fargo Bank, for an overall weighted average cost of funds of 2.23 percent.

The District’s parity revenue bond debt has been assigned
AAA, Aal and AA+ ratings and the subordinate revenue
bonds have been assigned ratings of AA+, Aa2, and

Revenue Bond/SRF Mix

AA+ from Fitch Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (As of June 30, 2019)
and S&P Global Rating’s Services, respectively. More o Fined
information about the District’s long-term debt and other $601,989,716 -

e L elens . . . oy M Synthetic Fixed
noncurrent liabilities is presented in Note 4 to the Basic 63%

) . ¥ Variable Rate
Financial Statements.

568,235,000 .
7% Total = $952.7 million
Excludes GO Bonds
& SRF Advances



MAJOR INITIATIVES

The District is driven by standards to provide safe, reliable, economical and environmentally friendly services. These
standards and services include highly reliable water, wastewater service and recycled water service, protection of public
and environmental health, superior customer service, sound planning and operational efficiency, fiscal responsibility and
appropriate investment, exemplary employer and effective communication, advocacy and community partnerships.

HIGHLY RELIABLE WATER, WASTEWATER, WATER AND RECYCLED
WATER SERVICE

To provide a safe, reliable and cost-effective water supply portfolio that is sustainable and achieves an optimum balance
of water resources including imported water, surface water, groundwater, wastewater treatment, reuse and resource
recovery, the District identified and invests in the following initiatives:

GROUNDWATER RELIABILITY PLUS INITIATIVE

Current and future growth within the District's )
service area increase demands for sustainable local “ ° G RO U N DWAT E R
® RELIABILITY PLUS
0

water supplies. The District is committed to a
..
%0 ®® Securing Our Water Future

"
o

comprehensive and collaborative approach toward
its local groundwater resources through its Board
adopted Groundwater Reliability Plus Initiative to
promote long-term water supply reliability. The
District currently operates 14 active potable wells and 12 active desalter wells that provides 15 percent of its water
supply portfolio. This number is anticipated to grow in the future through the Groundwater Reliability Plus Initiative, a
comprehensive approach to groundwater management with the goal of continually improving the quality and quantity
of water in the District’s local groundwater basins. This initiative ensures that the District can meet the long-term needs
of its service area through expanded groundwater services, including desalination, replenishment of aquifers and the
protection of water quality through environmental health initiatives.

SANTA ANA RIVER CONSERVATION AND CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAM
(SARCCUP) - WATER BANKING

The District is one of five member agencies of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) that is participating
in a first of its kind regional groundwater banking program known as the Santa Ana River Conservation and Conjunctive
Use Program (SARCCUP). This multi-agency watershed wide program will bank imported water to enhance water
supply reliability and increase available dry year supplies in the Santa Ana River Watershed. The program will also
integrate water conservation measures, habitat enhancements and recreational use. It will develop dry year yield by
banking wet year water with 180,000 acre feet capacity over a ten year period. The District will implement the San
Jacinto Basin component of the program by storing 19,500 plus acre feet of wet year water per ten-year period. The
District will install a one mile educational hiking trail and forty acres of open space in the form of a recharge basin in
the Santa Ana River Watershed. The five participating agencies include the District, Inland Empire Ultilities Agency
(IEUA), Orange County Water District (OCWD), San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD) and
Western Municipal Water District (WMWD).

This $22.9 million project is partly funded by a $12.7 million Proposition 84 Integrated Regional Water Management
Program (IRWMP) grant from SAWPA and is estimated to be completed in August 2022.



PERRIS Il REVERSE OSMOSIS TREATMENT FACILITY - DESALINATION

The Perris || Reverse Osmosis (RO) Treatment Facility Project is a multi-phase project that will produce potable water
from the contaminated Perris South Water Groundwater Management Zone. The project consists of construction of
RO treatment process facilities, four water supply wells, pipelines and additional treatment trains at the RO treatment
facilities. The Perris Il Desalter will treat degraded groundwater from the West San
Jacinto Basin so that the water can be used for potable purposes within the
District’s service area. The facility will be constructed adjacent to the two
existing desalters, the Menifee and Perris | Desalter. The Perris ||
Desalter, which will initially produce 3.6 million gallons per day, will
be equipped to support expansion to a capacity of 5.4 million
gallons per day, meeting the potable water demands of up to
12,000 homes in the Perris and Menifee service areas.

The District was successful in securing a $22.5 million
Proposition | Groundwater grant funding from the
State Water Resources Board in July 2018 to partly
fund this $41.0 million project. A Local Resources
Program (LRP) agreement from the Metropolitan
Water District (MWD) was also secured to provide
a subsidy of $305 per acre foot up to 5,500 acre feet
every year over twenty five years. If the maximum
amount of groundwater is recovered for beneficial
use, MWD will subsidize $41.9 million for the 137,500
acre-feet. The LRP program is an incentive program
for MWD member agencies to produce water that
would otherwise be supplied by MWD. The District
broke ground for the new Perris |l facility on March 28,
2019. This facility becomes its third desalination facility and
construction is expected to be completed in mid-2021.

TEMECULA VALLEY REGIONAL WATER
RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION

In 2016, the District's Temecula Valley Regional Water Reclamation Facility
(TVRWREF), located in the central commercial area of Temecula, began a 5 million
gallons per day (MGD) wastewater treatment capacity expansion project, bringing the total capacity to 23 MGD
once completed in 2020. This increased capacity is needed to accommodate growth in the region. The facility’s
expansion will include new primary, secondary, tertiary, solids handling and effluent pumping facilities and storage.

et

The District received $95.3 million in funding from the State Water Resources Control Board to partly fund the $120
million Recycled Water Supply Optimization project. The funding includes a Proposition 1 grant and a State Revolving
Fund loan. The Recycled Water Optimization Project, which will expand the District’s recycled water portfolio, includes
the Temecula Valley Regional Water Reclamation Facility expansion project which was substantially completed June
2019 with final work expected to be completed in August 2020.
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SOUND PLANNING AND OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

To deliver the highest quality products and services in a cost-effective manner by leveraging workforce, technology and
business partnerships to implement industry leading processes and practices.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

The District continues to actively pursue alternative sources
of energy and electrical power supply to address capacity
issues and cost of electrical power by investing

in solar, digester gas, fuel cell technology and
microturbines.

Solar power generation systems are v
installed at the Perris, Moreno Valley,

Temecula, San Jacinto and Sun City

facilities. These facilities benefit

from an average of 30 percent of its

energy usage provided through the

solar power generation systems that

produce an average of 1,000 kW [i&wEEEmm wwmw REETEL WEEE FETTE ST ST SR SRUT, SO W
of power at each site. These solar o ————— *::-:_d—‘::é‘-_lr" -—_::7_—'—"‘.;’;_:
systems are anticipated to save \ \ \ i e
ratepayers over $1.0 million over the \‘\\
life of the systems. A\ ‘

Digester gas driven fuel cells are \
installed at the Districts Moreno
Valley and Perris Valley regional water e e
reclamation facilities. These fuel cells, N +H -
which operate on renewable fuel, provide ,
25 to 40 percent of these facilities’ energy
requirements, produce zero emissions : s
cutting greenhouse gases by more than 10,600 : -
tons annually and save an estimated $1.0 million : T e
annually on energy costs.

The District currently has nine 60 kW microturbines N
which provide additional power generation that save more than

$300,000 each year. The exhaust from these microturbines heats

water necessary to power a 150-ton air conditioning unit.

AUTOMATED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE

The District’s Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) project, a multi-year project authorized by the Board of Directors
in December 2014 was completed in May 2019. A total of 155,000 water meters have been replaced by automated
(smart) meters. These smart meters will improve customer service options, save on labor costs and minimize water
loss. In 2017, the District started the three-year accelerated AMI Expansion project which included the installation of




44,000 meters during the year. AMI technology provides a remote data link between the meters and the District for
real time monitoring and allows hands free meter reading resulting in more efficient water reads, eliminating the need to
manually read water meters each month with an estimated reduction in mileage driven by District fleet vehicles by about
170,000 miles each year. The smart meters installed, used in conjunction with the District's existing AMI Tower Gateway
and Meter Data Management System, will provide daily and up to date customer water usage information and analysis
through an online portal that will enable customers to track their water usage in real time, project their monthly bills and
identify potential leaks in their property. Continuous and early leak detection is a component of water conservation.
Projected water savings from the project is 1,945 acre feet each year with an associated energy savings of 47.1 million
kilowatt hours (kWh) per year and water savings of 3,649 acre feet ongoing per year achieved after five years with an
associated 88.4 kWh per year. This $14 million AMI program is funded in part by grants from the California Department
of Water Resources for programs that increase water conservation and energy savings and reduce carbon emissions.

ALTERNATIVE FUEL VEHICLE FLEET

As part of the its effort to expand its clean energy fleet, reduce its carbon footprint and adapt to a changing regulatory
environment for vehicle emissions, the District has recently expanded its clean energy fleet through the purchase of
three new compressed natural gas (CNG) powered vactor trucks for wastewater collections operations. These three
new trucks are in addition to an already expanding list of alternative fuel vehicles. Six new CNG vehicles will be
received and added to the fleet in fiscal year 2020. These vehicles include heavy duty service trucks, dump trucks and a
water tank. Other clean energy vehicles in the fleet include one hybrid vehicle, four plug-in hybrid vehicles and one all
electric vehicle. As existing vehicles reach the end of their service life, they will be replaced with clean energy vehicles.
The District has a ten-port electric vehicle charging station and also uses public, accessible CNG charging stations.

SUPERIOR CUSTOMER SERVICE

The District is committed to consistently exceed customer expectations in all facets of its service through customer
awareness, service and technology.

EXCELLENT SERVICE

In June 2018, the District was presented the prestigious,
nationally known J.D. Power and Associates Award for

having the highest customer satisfaction in the western United
States and the sixth highest customer satisfaction score in

the nation based on their 2018 Water Utility Residential
Customer Satisfaction Survey. The Water Utility study
measures satisfaction of residential customers of utilities
delivering water to at least 400 thousand people, the

District serves approximately 827,000 people in its service
area. Customer Satisfaction is gauged by measuring 33
attributes within six factors: delivery, price, conservation,
billing and payment, communications and customer service.
The District was also recognized as highest in customer
satisfaction among all participating agencies for its customer
communication efforts. The study was conducted among nearly
40,000 respondents nationally who are served by the 88 water
systems that deliver water to more than 400 thousand people.




COMMUNITY OUTREACH

In April 2019, the District was presented with two Excellence in Public Information and Communications awards through
the California Association of Public Information Officials (CAPIO). The District was recognized for its Water Tax
Education and Healthy Sewers campaigns.

The District is among the statewide leaders in educating customers about the potential Water Tax and proposing
alternative, tax-free solutions to the issue of providing safe and reliable drinking water to areas that have failing systems.
Its Healthy Sewer Program is a public education program that promotes the responsible disposal of prescription
medication and fats, oils and grease. By reducing contaminants in the wastewater collection system, the District can
reduce treatment costs, help sustain a high quality recycled water supply and ultimately protect future groundwater
quality.

In addition to the CAPIO awards, the District received five awards from the Public Relations Society of America’s
Inland Empire Chapter for Outstanding Community Outreach. These award winning programs, which signify the
highest standards of performance and outstanding public relations tactics and programs, include the Water Bottle Fill
Station Program, the Education Program, the Water Leaders Academy Program, the Healthy Sewers Program and the
Employee Photo Contest Program.

EDUCATION

The District's award winning Education Program is actively engaged
in fostering and understanding of water and wastewater issues and
promoting wise water use among students at all grade levels, from
K to 12. lts extensive education program provides interested
schools within the Districts service area complimentary
lesson plans, curriculum packets, materials and a host of
other activities and programs. The District sponsors annual
poster and write-off contests open to students in K-middle
schools with different yearly themes including water
conservation and being sewer smart. Other activities
offered include field trips to District facilities which are
open to school districts and private schools within the
District’s service area, these trips are popular and are fully
booked in advance of the school year end. For high school
students, the District partners with the Metropolitan Water
District (MWD) by annually sponsoring teams to the Solar
Cup competition. The competition is a solar-powered boat
race where students design, build and race solar-powered boats
allowing the use of alternative power and also allowing the students
to understand the project based learning and teamwork.  Other
District sponsored education programs include complimentary bird walks,
education videos, paper and electronic books and student recognition events.
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FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROPRIATE INVESTMENT

To District continues to focus its efforts in areas that will ensure financial stability and demonstrate responsible stewardship
of public funds.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District established a funding policy to fund its retiree health program through the California Employers’ Retiree
Benefit Trust (CERBT) and started funding in fiscal year 2013 with a goal to achieve full funding by fiscal year 2034.
The District began funding future costs in July 2012 and July 2013 with initial $2.8 and $5.7 million deposits to CERBT.
In fiscal year 2014, the District implemented a new tier of OPEB benefits for future hires that will dramatically improve
the plan funding and viability over the long term. In addition, the District adopted funding policy principles that direct
how the OPEB Trust will be funded over time, in accordance with sound funding principles. Commencing in fiscal year
2015, the District made its full Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) and intends to continue to do so until its
OPEB obligations are fully funded. In fiscal years 2017, 2018 and 2019, the District’s contributions to the Trust exceeded
the ADC by $7.5 million, $6.5 million and $7.6 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2018, the District's OPEB Liability
was 50 percent funded, this was substantially sooner than anticipated when the OPEB funding policy principles were
adopted by the Board of Directors.

OPEB Funded Ratio Annual OPEB Contributions
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ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The Finance Department is responsible for providing the financial services for the District, including financial accounting
and reporting, payroll and accounts payable, custody and investment of funds, billing and collection of water and
wastewater charges, taxes, and other revenues. The District’s books and records are maintained on an enterprise basis,
as it is the intent of the Board to manage the District’s operations as a business, thus matching the revenues against
the costs of providing the services. Revenues and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis in the period in which the
revenue is earned and the expenses are incurred.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The District's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to
safequard the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled
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to allow for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP. Management follows the concept of
reasonable assurance in recognizing that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and
that the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments. The most recent audits have not uncovered
any weaknesses in internal control that would cause concern. However, recommendations for improvement are always
welcome and are implemented where feasible.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Eastern Municipal Water District for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This was the fifteenth consecutive year that the District has
received this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skill, effort, and dedication of the entire staff
of the Finance department. We wish to thank all departments for their assistance in providing the data necessary to
prepare this report. We would also like to thank the Board of Directors for their unfailing support for maintaining the
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the District’s finances.

Note: Statistical information provided in this letter include the following sources: Eastern Municipal Water District, United States Department
of Labor Statistics, Dr. John Husing’s Quarterly Economic Report, County of Riverside Assessor 2018-2019 Annual Report, Economic Forecast

and Industry Outlook, Institute For Applied Economics, PPIC, the Press Enterprise and the California Department of Transportation.
Respectfully submitted,

Yty

Paul D. Jones Il, PE.

General Manager
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EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
LIST OF ELECTED & APPOINTED OFFICIALS
June 30, 2019

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Name Elected Current Term of Office
Ronald W. Sullivan 1/2003 2017 - 2021
Philip E. Paule 1/2007 2019 - 2023
Stephen J. Corona 1/2019 2019 - 2023
David J. Slawson 1/1995 2019 - 2023
Randy A. Record 1/2001 2017 - 2021
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Position Name

General Manager

Deputy General Manager
Deputy General Manager
Assistant General Manager

Assistant General Manager

Paul D. Jones I, PE.
Laura M. Nomura, CPA
Nicolas Kanetis, P.E.
Jeff D. Wall, PE.

Joe Mouawad, PE.
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EMWD completed work
on a modern sewer system in
the Quail Valley area of Menifee,
marking the end to a long-awaited
project that will protect water quality in
the region. The project connected 215
properties to the sewer system and was
paid for through grant funding from a
- variety of agencies, including the State
Woater Resources Control Board, Santa =

Ana Watershed Project Authority ‘,\\‘
i

and the Santa Ana Regional
Water Quality Contro
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DavisFarr
2301 Dupont Drive | Suite 200 | Irvine, CA 92612

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Main: 949.474.2020 | Fax: 949.263.5520

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Board of Directors
Eastern Municipal Water District
Perris, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Eastern Municipal Water
District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the District as of June 30, 2019, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the District’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 8,
2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and
Related Ratios During the Measurement Period, Schedufe of Pension Plan Contributions,
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios for the Measurement Period,
and the Schedule of OPEB Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and
the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 13, 2019 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Irvine California
November 13, 2019




On behalf of the Eastern Municipal Water District (the “District”), we are pleased to offer the following narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We encourage all readers of
the District’s financial statements to consider the financial information presented in this section in conjunction with the
accompanying financial statements, notes, analyses, and additional information furnished in our letter of transmittal at
the opening of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources of the District exceeded it liabilities and deferred inflow of resources at
the close of fiscal year 2019 by $1,636.8 million (net position). The District’s net position, which increased $87.9 million
or 5.7 percent from the prior fiscal year includes net investment in capital assets, $1,389.3 million; restricted for debt
service and construction, $92.6 million and unrestricted, $154.9 million.

Total revenue and capital contributions exceeded operating and non-operating expenses by $87.9 million (change in net
position) for the fiscal year 2019. The change in net position is $55.2 million higher than the prior year due to increases in
non-operating revenues of $17.6 million or 15.2 percent and increases in capital contributions of $35.3 million or 164.7 percent.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District’s basic financial statements include a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows and notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

»  Statement of Net Position: This statement presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, and
deferred outflows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

* Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: This statement presents information on the
District’s current fiscal years revenue and expense. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal
years.

» Statement of Cash Flows: This statement provides relevant information about the District’s cash receipts and
cash payments segregated among operating, capital and related financing, and investing activities.

* Notes to the Basic Financial Statements: These notes provide a description of the accounting policies used to
prepare the financial statements and present material disclosures required by generally accepted accounting
principles that are not otherwise present in the financial statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (con’t)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District’s total activity.

TABLE 1, NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets
Restricted assets
Net capital assets
Total Assets

Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other liabilities
Long-term debt outstanding
Total Liabilities

Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018
Increase (Decrease)

2019 2018 Amount % Change
S 399,376,725 348,392,462 50,984,263 14.6%
253,403,700 272,509,658 (19,105,958) -7.0%
2,305,967,041 2,273,825,780 32,141,261 1.4%
$  2,958,747,466 2,894,727,900 64,019,566 2.2%
S 67,070,833 73,400,012 (6,329,179) -8.6%
S 96,033,392 94,366,284 1,667,108 1.8%
215,796,604 222,656,314 (6,859,710) -3.1%
1,069,929,877 1,091,873,128 (21,943,251) -2.0%
$ 1,381,759,873 1,408,895,726 (27,135,853) -1.9%
S 7,292,047 10,414,532 (3,122,485) -30.0%
$ 1,389,284,069 1,349,982,180 39,301,889 2.9%
92,561,916 103,986,806 (11,424,890) -11.0%
154,920,394 94,848,668 60,071,726 63.3%
$ 1,636,766,379 1,548,817,654 87,948,725 5.7%

Ratio of Liabilities and Deferred Inflows to Assets

and Deferred Outflows of Resources

46%

48%
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Comparing net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a District's financial position. As shown on Table 1,
the District's statement of net position includes assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources. Assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $1,636.8 million
(net position) at the close of fiscal year 2019, representing an increase of $87.9 million or 5.7 percent from fiscal year 2018.

The ratio of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources to assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased from 48
percent in fiscal year 2018 to 46 percent in fiscal year 2019. This ratio indicates the degree to which the District’s assets
are financed through borrowing and other obligations.

* Total assets increased by $64.0 million or 2.2 percent from fiscal year 2018. Net capital assets increased
$32.1 million due to the substantial completion of large construction projects including the Temecula Valley
RWREF 23 MGD Expansion and the Quail Valley Subarea 9 Phase | sewer projects. These construction projects,
which were largely funded by grants, resulted in increased grants receivable balance of $26.6 million at the end
of fiscal year 2019.

* Total liabilities decreased by $27.1 million or 1.9 percent reflecting decreases of $15.1 million in outstanding
revenue bonds and $11.1 million in net other postemployment benefits obligation. The $15.1 million decrease in
outstanding revenue bonds is a result of scheduled debt principal payments made during the fiscal year. The
$11.1 million decrease in net other postemployment benefits obligations reflects a $17.9 million contribution to the
plan and a $3.9 million investment income, net of benefit payments, for the June 30, 2018 measurement period.

EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

Increase (Decrease)

2019 2018 Amount % Change

REVENUES

Operating revenues S 241,919,404 S 240,507,479 S 1,411,925 0.6%

Non-operating revenues 133,898,190 116,269,089 17,629,101 15.2%
Total Revenues 375,817,594 356,776,568 19,041,026 5.3%
EXPENSES

Operating expenses 302,687,296 305,184,148 (2,496,852) -0.8%

Non-operating expenses 41,846,404 40,233,012 1,613,392 4.0%
Total Expenses 344,533,700 345,417,160 (883,460) -0.3%
Increase (Decrease) in

Net Position before capital contributions 31,283,894 11,359,408 19,924,486 175.4%

Capital contributions 56,664,831 21,405,493 35,259,338 164.7%
Change in Net Position 87,948,725 32,764,901 55,183,824 168.4%
Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,548,817,654 1,532,531,643 16,286,011 1.1%

Effect of adoption of GASB 75 - (16,478,890) 16,478,890 100.0%

Net Position - End of Year $ 1,636,766,379 S 1,548,817,654 S 87,948,725 5.7%




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (con’t)
CHANGES IN FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE DISTRICT

The District’s statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position reports the results of its operations for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. A summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and
June 30, 2018 is reported on Table 2 of the previous page.

REVENUES
The District's operating revenues include water sales, sewer service Revenue Sources (Operating and Non-Operating)
charge and recycled water sales. Operating revenues which were $1.4  cie von

Operating ‘_‘—E‘—-—:a‘_}_:‘

million or 0.6 percent higher in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year s
2018, reflects a $6.0 million increase in sewer service charge revenue
offset by decreases of $2.6 million in water sales and $2.0 million in
recycled water sales. The $6.0 million increase in sewer revenue is due to
a combination of new sewer connections and rate increases approved by
the Board effective January 1, 2019. The combined $4.6 million decrease
in water and recycled water sales reflect lower acre feet sales volumes
due to higher rainfall during the winter months and continued customer
conservation efforts. Water sales volume decreased by 10,275 acre feet
while recycled water sales volume decreased by 10,374 acre feet. The effects of these volumetric decreases to revenue
were partially offset by rate increases effective January 1, 2019.

Non-operating revenues, which include property taxes, water and sewer connection fees and other revenues were $17.6
million or 15.2 percent higher in fiscal year 2019 as a result of increases in water and sewer connection fee revenue, $7.7
million; interest revenue, $3.6 million and increase in fair value of investments, $6.3 million. The higher water and sewer
connection fee revenues are due to increases in EDU and EMS connections and higher connection fee rates. The
increase in interest revenue is due to higher interest rate yields in fiscal year 2019 compared to the prior fiscal year.

EXPENSES
The District's operating expenses include the cost of purchased water, Functional Expenses (Operating and Non-Operating)
water service operating cost, sewer service operating cost, recycled water s e e
ostemployment 2% 3%
operating cost, general and administrative cost, depreciation cost and L ‘

other employment benefit cost. Total operating expenses were $2.5 million
or 0.8 percent lower in fiscal year 2019 due to decreases of $5.8 million in
purchased water cost and $2.5 million in general and administrative cost.
Purchased water cost was lower in fiscal year 2019, mostly as a result of
decreased domestic retail demand. The $2.5 million decrease in general
and administrative expense is due to lower pension expense and actuarially
determined contribution in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018.

Non-operating expenses, which include the loss on disposal of capital

assets, interest expense on debt obligations and other expenses, were $ 1.6 million or 4.0 percent higher in fiscal year
2019. This change reflects increases in loss on disposal of capital assets, $1.7 million and other expenses, $1.7 million
offset by decreases in research and development costs, $790 thousand, and interest expense, $1.0 million.



CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Capital contributions were $35.3 million or 165.0 percent higher in fiscal year 2019, reflecting increases in developer
contributions of $8.5 million and capital grants, $26.2 million. The higher grant revenue is due to several of the District's
large construction projects being funded by State grants. These projects include the Temecula Valley RWRF 23
Expansion Project, the Quail Valley Subarea 9 Phase | Sewer Project, the Perris Il Reverse Osmosis Project and the
Santa Ana Conservation and Conjunctive Use Program.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District reported an increase of $32.1 million in net capital assets in fiscal year 2019. A comparison of changes in
capital assets is provided in Table 3 below.

Capital Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Increase/(Decrease)

2019 2018 Amount % Change

Land S 64,866,802 S 62,655,585 S 2,211,217 3.5%
Tunnel Water Seepage Agreement 1,750,900 1,750,900 - 0.0%
Water capacity rights 30,074,350 30,074,350 - 0.0%
Water plant, lines and equipment 1,289,906,207 1,206,082,386 83,823,821 7.0%
Sewer plant, lines and equipment 2,011,894,372 1,930,046,536 81,847,836 4.2%
Equipment and general facilities 125,749,213 122,650,859 3,098,354 2.5%
Construction in progress 130,468,086 183,831,531 (53,363,445) -29.0%
Total capital assets 3,654,709,930 3,537,092,147 117,617,783 3.3%
Less accumulated depreciation (1,348,742,889) (1,263,266,367) (85,476,522) 6.8%
Net capital assets $  2,305,967,041 S 2,273,825,780 S 32,141,261 1.4%

The $117.6 million increase in capital assets, before accumulated depreciation, include increases in water and sewer plant,
lines and equipment of $165.7 million offset by a decrease of $53.4 million in construction in progress.

Significant additions to water and sewer plant, lines and equipment include the following construction projects: Temecula
Valley RWRF 23 MGD Expansion, $85.6 million; Quail Valley Subarea 9 Phase | Sewer, $10.4 million; and the Perris and
Elder Booster Station, $7.9 million.

The Temecula Valley RWRF 23 MGD Expansion project, which will provide 5 MGD in additional wastewater treatment
capacity, includes the construction of the new Plant 3 facility and modifications to the existing facilities, increasing the
treatment plant’s total capacity to 23 MGD. The Plant 3 facility includes new primary, secondary, tertiary, solids handling
and effluent pumping facilities and storage. This project was substantially complete at June 30, 2019, with final work to
be completed by August 31, 2020.



The Quail Valley Subarea 9 Phase | sewer project, located in the City of Menifee, includes the installation of a gravity
sewer system for 158 existing residential units and 75 undeveloped lots. This portion of Subarea 9 follows an alternative
gravity sewer approach utilizing the lift station capacity in the Audie Murphy Ranch development. The project, which
also includes a trunk sewer at Goetz Road, was substantially complete at June 30, 2019, with final work to be completed
by October 31, 2019.

The Perris and Elder Booster Station replaced the existing Perris and Ironwood Booster Station located on the south
east corner of Perris Blvd and Ironwood Avenue in the City of Moreno Valley. This new pump station, located on Elder
Avenue west of Perris Blvd, includes suction and discharge pipelines (30-inch) in Elder Avenue, a transmission main (30-
inch) in Perris Boulevard, between Elder and Ironwood Avenue, and the demolition and abandonment of the existing
Perris and Ironwood Booster Station. The project was substantially complete as of January 31, 2019, with final work to be
completed by October 31, 2019.

Some of the major projects currently underway and where expenditures in fiscal year 2019 exceeded $2.0 million include:

Millions

e Ten water and sewer projects between $1,000,000 - $2,000,000 $16.1
* Sixty-eight water and sewer projects between $100,000 - $500,000 14.8
e Temecula Valley RWRF 23 MGD Expansion 11.8
¢ Remaining water and sewer projects with expenses less than $100,000 10.6
* Fourteen water and sewer projects between $500,000 - $1,000,000 8.1
e Perris Il Desalter (5.4 MGD) 6.2
e Wells 201, 202 & 203 Drilling and Testing 6.0
e Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Meter Replacement 4.1
e MV/SJV/TV RWRF’s Blower Electrification, Design phase 3.4
¢ Dunlap Drive Pipeline Replacement Project 3.4
¢ Quail Valley Sewer Improvements Sub-Area 9 Phase | 3.4
e Hemet Water Filtration Plant Membrane Replacement 3.0
¢ Fox Street 1MG Storage Tank and Pipeline 2.9
e Potable Water Well #38 Equipping 2.8
® Pump Electrification Project Phase | 2.8
e MV, PV & SJVRWRF Hypochlorite Implementation Project 2.7
e Sun City Lift Station Electrical Upgrades 2.4
¢ Post Road Hydropneumatic Booster Pump Station 2.4
¢ San Jacinto Valley Recharge Property ID, Evaluation and Acquisition 2.2

$109.1

The District had $149.6 million in construction contract commitments as of June 30, 2019 (additional information can
be found in Note 10 of the Basic Financial Statements).



LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities consist of debt and other liabilities. Long-term debt includes advances for construction, notes
and assessments, revenue bonds, general obligation (GO) bonds and unamortized deferred amounts for premiums/
discounts relating to debt issuances. Other long-term liabilities include state revolving fund (SRF) loans, construction
advances, advances from developers, other accrued expenses, compensated absences, net other postemployment
benefits obligation and the fair value of swap contracts.

The District had a total of $1,285.7 million of outstanding debt and other noncurrent liabilities at June 30, 2019, a
decrease of $28.8 million or 2.2 percent from the prior year. Decreases in net other postemployment benefits obligation
of $11.1 million, non-current outstanding revenue bonds of $15.5 million and advances for construction of $5.8 million
were offset by increases in advances from developer, $2.5 million and fair value of swap contracts, $1.8 million. Net other
postemployment benefits obligation was $11.1 million lower compared to the prior fiscal year due to continued funding
in excess of the District’s actuarially determined contribution. Non-current outstanding revenue bonds were $15.5
million lower as a result of scheduled debt repayments made during the fiscal year. There were no new debt issuances
in fiscal year 2019 other than the refunding of the 2017E and 2017F refunding revenue bonds.

The District’s parity revenue bond debt has been assigned an AAA, Aa1 and AA+ rating and the subordinate refunding
revenue bonds have been assigned ratings of AA+, Aa2, and AA+ from Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors Service, Inc.,
and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, respectively. More detailed information about the District’s long-term debt and
other noncurrent liabilities is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide Eastern Municipal Water District’s elected officials, citizens, customers,
investors and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability
of the money it receives. If you have any questions regarding any of the information provided in this report or need
additional financial information, please contact the District’s Finance Department at 2270 Trumble Road, PO. Box 8300,
Perris, CA 92572-8300. General information relating to the District can be found on its website http://www.emwd.org.



EMWD received a funding
appropriation of $2.78
million from the United
States Army Corps of
Engineers through its 2018
workplan. The funding from
the Army Corps is part of its
ongoing commitment to the
South Perris Desalter.
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EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and investments

Utility accounts receivable, net of allowance

Property taxes receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Materials and supplies inventory
Water inventory
Grants receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Debt service covenants cash and investments

Property taxes receivable
Soboba reimbursement receivable
Construction cash and investments
Notes receivable
Total restricted assets
Capital assets:
Land
Tunnel water seepage agreement

Structures, improvements and water rights

Equipment and general facilities
Construction in progress
Total capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total net capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:

Accumulated increase fair value of swap contracts

Deferred outflows - pension contributions
Deferred outflows - OPEB contributions
Deferred outflows - actuarial
Deferred charges on debt refundings
Total deferred outflow of resources

JUNE 30

2019 2018
296,641,268 $ 275,611,138
30,007,094 31,754,761
12,643,000 12,344,214
2,296,565 2,253,452
8,863,408 6,503,773
3,751,287 3,488,668
4,130,201 5,832,888
11,993,048 8,159,969
29,050,854 2,443,599
399,376,725 348,392,462
87,228,218 80,740,900
1,590,251 1,577,112
12,998,778 12,998,778
149,422,063 175,190,704
2,164,390 2,002,164
253,403,700 272,509,658
64,866,802 62,655,585
1,750,900 1,750,900
3,331,874,929 3,166,203,272
125,749,213 122,650,859
130,468,086 183,831,531
3,654,709,930 3,537,092,147
(1,348,742,889) (1,263,266,367)
2,305,967,041 2,273,825,780
2,559,370,741 2,546,335,438
2,958,747,466 2,894,727,900
2,585,392 -
12,446,689 10,748,902
19,240,938 17,947,401
16,989,362 22,661,050
15,808,452 22,042,659
67,070,833 73,400,012

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Accrued interest payable
Other payables
Advances for construction, notes and assessments
Revenue bonds
General obligation bonds
Advances from developers
Capital lease payable
Unearned revenue
Other accrued expenses payable
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Advances for construction, notes and assessments
Revenue bonds
General obligation bonds
State revolving fund construction advances
Advances from developers
Other accrued expenses payable
Net other postemployment benefits obligation
Net pension liability
Fair value of swap contracts
Total Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Accumulated decrease in fair value of swap contracts
Deferred inflows - actuarial
Deferred inflows - other postemployment benefits
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service covenants
Restricted for construction
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

JUNE 30

2019 2018
$ 33,294,227 32,656,263
1,671,492 2,346,509
10,532,988 10,025,734
8,725,167 8,713,319
13,480,570 13,713,207
5,874,805 3,498,931
3,239,761 3,205,739
16,417,008 15,922,009
1,155,393 1,105,393
631,096 805,037
- 1,018
- 455,814
1,010,885 1,917,311
96,033,392 94,366,284
3,285,203 3,384,989
77,694,955 83,513,809
940,838,430 956,385,437
30,584,330 31,739,723
6,443,478 6,443,478
23,605,198 21,092,253
5,700,487 5,333,330
56,851,211 67,918,435
132,789,256 132,603,024
7,933,933 6,114,964
1,285,726,481 1,314,529,442
1,381,759,873 1,408,895,726
- 4,206,592
6,076,509 5,335,298
1,215,538 872,642
7,292,047 10,414,532
1,389,284,069 1,349,982,180
86,400,881 80,159,371
6,161,035 23,827,435
154,920,394 94,848,668
$ 1,636,766,379 1,548,817,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

JUNE 30
2019 2018
Operating revenues:
Water sales - domestic 127,831,377 S 130,596,237
Water sales - irrigation 5,015,795 4,832,629
Sewer service charge 102,037,610 96,049,786
Recycled water sales 7,034,622 9,028,827
Total operating revenues 241,919,404 240,507,479
Operating expenses:
Purchased water 60,469,414 65,846,363
Water operations 46,398,474 44,202,187
Sewer operations 42,748,806 42,110,008
Recycled water operations 6,682,894 6,417,615
General and administrative 41,420,672 43,901,997
Depreciation and amortization 97,743,963 94,853,174
Net other postemployment benefits 7,223,073 7,852,804
Total operating expenses 302,687,296 305,184,148
Operating income (loss) (60,767,892) (64,676,669)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes - general levy 38,204,912 36,294,389
Property taxes - general bond levy 4,883,352 4,508,530
Availability (standby) assessments 5,828,077 5,769,853
Water and sewer connection fees 54,665,900 46,924,875
Interest revenue 11,897,412 8,295,493
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 4,026,589 (2,262,415)
Grant revenues 272,250 1,646,062
Other revenues 14,119,698 15,092,302
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (2,212,310) (479,520)
Interest expense (30,303,310) (31,336,401)
General obligation fund service fees (30,864) (30,864)
Research and development costs (2,617,459) (3,407,552)
Other expenses (6,682,461) (4,978,675)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 92,051,786 76,036,077
Income (loss) before contributions 31,283,894 11,359,408
Capital contributions:
Developer contributions 27,304,942 18,762,934
Capital grants 27,694,361 1,482,801
Other capital contributions 1,665,528 1,159,758
Total capital contributions 56,664,831 21,405,493
Change in net position 87,948,725 32,764,901
Total net position - Beginning of year 1,548,817,654 1,532,531,643
Effect of adoption of GASB 75 - (16,478,890)
Total net position - End of Year S 1,636,766,379 S 1,548,817,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

June 30
Cash flows from operating activities: 2019 2018
Receipts from customers 244,631,449 S 239,777,702
Receipts from availability (standby) assessments 5,713,451 5,749,180
Other receipts 13,663,884 15,092,302
Payments for water (64,387,590) (68,526,398)
Payments to employee for services (98,069,792) (94,968,345)
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (49,402,933) (51,973,816)
Payments for energy and utilities (11,494,313) (13,115,134)
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities 40,654,156 32,035,491
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from property taxes, general levy 38,020,752 36,287,718
Proceeds from operating grants 244,680 347,206
Net cash (used for) provided by noncapital 38,265,432 36,634,924
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets (105,098,634) (120,390,938)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 306,042 144,669
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance 195,720,000 -
Proceeds from SRF construction advances 119,932 8,989,068
Repayment of notes, bonds and certificates of participations (213,095,782) (17,680,767)
Interest paid (33,993,020) (31,839,895)
Proceeds from property taxes, GO bond levy 4,870,213 4,488,671
Proceeds from water and sewer connection fees 54,665,900 46,924,875
Proceeds from developer advances 8,577,843 35,893,009
Repayments of developer advances (6,238,839) (33,613,013)
Proceeds from capital grants 1,114,676 5,789,111
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities (93,051,669) (101,295,210)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (198,226,368) (146,656,733)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 154,346,616 102,288,803
Proceeds from earnings on investments 11,854,299 7,502,640
Net cash (used for) provided by investing activities (32,025,453) (36,865,290)
Total (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (46,157,534) (69,490,085)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 244,074,307 313,564,392
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 197,916,773 S 244,074,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash
(used for) provided by operating activities:

Loss from operations

Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense

Other revenues

(Increase) decrease in utility accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivables

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in materials and supplies inventory
(Increase) decrease in water inventory

(Increase) decrease in notes receivable

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Increase (decrease) in net other postemployment benefits obligation
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows

Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent to statement of net
position:

Current cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments:

Debt service/covenants

Construction

Total cash and investments

Less investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Noncash capital, financing, and investing activities:
Capital asset contributions from developers
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

Amortization of bond premiums, discounts, and loss on debt refundings

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30
2019 2018
(60,767,892) (64,676,669)
97,743,963 94,853,174
11,857,569 13,635,686
1,747,667 (2,756,763)
(2,474,260) (932,611)
(262,619) 288,867
1,702,687 (1,154,086)
(3,833,079) (2,496,059)
(162,226) 192,332
637,963 (3,249,566)
1,161,588 647,411
507,254 704,019
(87,938) (704,255)
(11,067,224) 7,632,363
186,232 15,442,654
1,084,107 1,810,156
2,680,364 (27,201,162)
40,654,156 32,035,491
296,641,268 275,611,138
87,228,218 80,740,900
149,422,063 175,190,704
533,291,549 531,542,742
335,374,776 287,468,435
197,916,773 244,074,307
27,304,942 18,762,934
4,026,589 (2,262,415)
(3,426,209) (3,274,601)
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EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

The Eastern Municipal Water District (District) was formed in October 1950, under the California Water Code for
the primary purpose of importing Colorado River Water to augment local water supplies. In 1962, the District began
providing wastewater treatment services to customers within its service area and, as a consequence, has become
actively involved in the production of recycled water (i.e., wastewater which has been treated to a level acceptable for
nondomestic purposes) and has been recognized as an industry leader in the management of ground water basins and
the related beneficial uses of recycled water. The District’s water and wastewater customers include retail customers (e.g.,
residential, commercial and agricultural) located in both incorporated and unincorporated areas within the District's
service area, as well as wholesale customers (e.g., municipalities and local water Districts) located within its service area.

The District formed the Eastern Municipal Water District Facilities Corporation (Facilities Corporation) on April 10,
1979, under the Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law, State of California, for the purpose of rendering financing
assistance to the District by acquiring, constructing and operating or providing for the operation of water and wastewater
facilities, including water and wastewater transmission pipelines, treatment plants and related facilities for the use, benefit
and enjoyment of the public within the District’s boundaries. The Facilities Corporation is a blended component unit of
the District.

The District formed the Eastern Municipal Water District Financing Authority (Financing Authority) on April 1, 2015,
under the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, constituting Article 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the
California Government Code. The Financing Authority was formed to enable the District to finance, refinance, or
provide interim financing for the acquisition, construction, and operation of water supplies, water and wastewater
infrastructure, water rights, public facilities, other public capital improvements, or other projects whenever there is
significant public benefits. The Financing Authority is a blended component unit of the District.

The District’s reporting entity includes the General District, the related improvement Districts located within the service
area of the General District, the Facilities Corporation and the Financing Authority. Although the District, the Facilities
Corporation and the Financing Authority are legally separate entities, the District's Board of Directors also serve as
the Facilities Corporation and the Financing Authority’s Board of Directors, and therefore, the accompanying financial
statements include the accounts and records of the Facilities Corporation and the Financing Authority as required by
generally accepted accounting principles using the blending method. There are no separate financial statements for the
Facilities Corporation and the Financing Authorities, they merely serve as the legal entity used by the District to issue
long-term debt. Accordingly, the Facilities Corporation and the Financing Authority have no separate financial activity
to be reported as separate funds of the District.



NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont'd)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT FOCUS

The District accounts for its operations on a fund basis. In governmental accounting, a fund is a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities
and residual equities or balances, and changes therein. Because the activities of the District receive significant support
from fees and charges, it uses a proprietary (enterprise) fund. Enterprise fund accounting is designed to highlight the
extent to which fees and charges are sufficient to cover the cost of providing goods and services.

The District uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Measurement
focus determines what is measured in a set of financial statements and under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value. Investments that are not
traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued based on the stated fair value as represented by
the external pool.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly-liquid investments (including restricted
assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

CLASSIFICATION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

An enterprise fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues and expenses.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the District’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges
to customers for domestic, agricultural and irrigation, and recycled water sales, and sewer service charges. Operating
expenses for the District include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital
assets.

Non-operating revenues and expenses are those revenues and expenses generated that are not directly associated with
the normal business of supplying water and wastewater treatment services. Non-operating revenues mainly consist
of property taxes, availability (standby) assessments, investment income, connection fees, and miscellaneous income.
Capital contributions consist of facilities built by developers and turned over to the District to operate and maintain;
and federal, state and private grants used to fund capital assets. Non-operating expenses mainly consist of debt service
interest and debt-related fees.




NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont'd)

CAPITAL ASSETS

Both purchased capital assets and self-constructed capital assets are recorded at acquisition cost. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes direct labor, material, contracted services and overhead. Contributed capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the time they are received. These assets consist primarily of distribution lines and
connections constructed and donated by developers. The District follows the capitalization thresholds shown below for
all purchased or constructed assets. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Amount Estimated Useful
Asset Group (Minimum) Life

Department tools and equipment; computer hardware and

software $ 5,000 > than 3 years
Facilities plant and equipment 10,000 > than 5 years
Fleet vehicles 10,000 > than 3 years
Operations and maintenance improvement/replacement projects 10,000 > than 5 years

Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Water source of supply and treatment 30-40
Water storage and distribution 20-40
Wastewater collection system and lift stations 35-100
Wastewater treatment plants 40-50
Recycled water storage and distribution 40-50
Capacity rights 40

Meters and service connections 20-25
Buildings and improvements 10-35
Office and general equipment 5-10

Automotive pool 5-15

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

An allowance for doubtful accounts has been established for utility accounts receivables that are 60 or more days
delinquent at year-end. This allowance is netted against the receivable on the Statement of Net Position and amounts
to $188,441 at June 30, 2019.

INVENTORIES

Material and supplies inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of utility plant
and is valued at weighted average cost. Water inventory consists of native groundwater and purchased water holdings
in the Hemet-San Jacinto Basin. It is valued based upon purchase cost and weighted average cost of consumption.




NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont'd)

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Amounts shown as restricted assets have been restricted by bond indenture, law, or contractual obligations to be used
for specified purposes, such as servicing bonded debt and construction of capital assets.

Restricted assets include water and sewer connection fees. The resolution establishing the authority for water and
sewer connection fees restricts the use of these fees to the construction, acquisition, or financing of capital assets. The
water and sewer connection fees are exchange transactions (non-operating revenues). The connecting party receives
a benefit (connection to the system) approximately equal in value to the amount paid. These fees do not represent
capital contributions (non-exchange transactions).

Generally, restricted resources are not commingled with unrestricted resources in financing projects and activities, and
are used for specific types of projects for which such funding is designated. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, the District may use restricted resources or unrestricted resources, depending upon the
type of project or activity, as determined by Board action.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenues are recognized when earned. Metered water accounts are read and billed daily on thirty-day cycles. Wastewater
customers are also billed and included with the water billing. In certain areas of the District, the wastewater billing is
handled by another water utility agency, however, revenues are accrued by the District each month. Collections
are forwarded monthly, based on actual receipts. Unbilled water and wastewater charges are accrued for the period
from the last meter reading through year-end and are included in accounts receivable. Unbilled accounts receivable
amounted to $10,382,772 at June 30, 2019.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property tax in California is levied in accordance with Article XIIIA of the State Constitution at one percent of countywide
assessed valuations. The property taxes are placed in a pool and are then allocated to the local governmental units
based upon complex formulas. Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are levied.

The property tax calendar is as follows:

Lien date: January 1
Levy date: July 1
Due date: First installment — November 1

Second installment - February 1

Delinquent date: First installment - December 10
Second installment - April 10
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NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont'd)

DEBT DISCOUNTS, PREMIUMS, AND DEFERRED AMOUNTS ON REFUNDING

General obligation bond and revenue bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the term of
the bonds. The discounts and premiums are presented as an addition (or reduction) of the face amount of the debt.
Furthermore, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, deferred charges on refunding are presented as deferred outflows of
resources on the Statement of Net Position.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District has a policy whereby an employee can accumulate unused paid time off up to a maximum of 675 hours.
Hours in excess of the maximum are paid out to employees each November. All employees who separate from the
District are entitled to receive 100 percent of their accumulated unused paid time off. The District provides for these
future costs by accruing 100 percent of all earned and unused paid time off.

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions,
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined
timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2017
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2018
Measurement Period (MP) June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018



NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont'd)

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB and
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s plan (OPEB Plan), the assets of which
are held by the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined
timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2017
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2018
Measurement Period (MP) June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section of deferred outflows of
resources. [ his separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures)
until then. The District has five items that qualify for reporting in this category: the accumulated increase in fair value
of swap contracts, the deferred outflows on pension contributions, the deferred outflows on OPEB contributions, the
deferred actuarial amounts related to pension and the deferred charges on debt refundings. These are reported on the
Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, the deferred actuarial amounts related to pension and
OPEB. This is reported on the Statement of Net Position.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be reported at fair value. The fair value framework provides a hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority
to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.




NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies including:

* Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

* Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive;

* |nputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

* |nputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. These
unobservable input reflect the District’s own assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk). These unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances and may include the District's own data.

The hierarchy level of an asset or liability is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

The determination of what constitutes observable requires judgment by the District’s management. District management
considers observable data to be that market data, which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable
and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by multiple independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
market.

The categorization of an investment or liability within the hierarchy is based upon the relative observability of the inputs
to its fair value measurement and does not necessarily correspond to District management’s perceived risk of that
investment or liability.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and therefore
include amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and judgments. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

PRIOR YEAR DATA

Selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying financial statements. This
information has been included for comparison purposes only and does not represent a complete presentation in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the District’s prior year financial statements, from which this selected financial data was derived.

INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS

The District entered into interest rate swap contracts to fix the interest rates on certain outstanding variable rate debt.
These contracts are recorded at fair value.

Fair values of these interest rate swap contracts are reported as liabilities and its changes in the fair value are reported as
deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position. As of June 30, 2019, all potential hedging instruments
of the District are considered effective hedges.




NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are classified in the accompanying Statement of Net Position as follows:

Current assets
Restricted assets:
Debt service covenants
Construction
Totals

Cash and investments consisted of the following:

Cash on hand

Deposits with financial institutions
Investments

Total cash and investments

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following:

Demand accounts and on hand

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST)
Money market mutual funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

2019

S 296,641,268

87,228,218
149,422,063

S 533,291,549

2019

S 6,500
15,110,466
518,174,583

$ 533,291,549

2019

$ 15,116,966
92,921,975
52,631,745
37,246,087

$ 197,916,773
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

INVESTMENTS AUTHORIZED BY THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE DISTRICT'S INVESTMENT
POLICY

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code
and the District’s investment policy. The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or
the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of
debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s
investment policy.

Authorized by Maximum Maximum

Investment Types Investment Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity* of Portfolio*  in One Issuer*
U.S. treasury obligations Yes 5 Years None None
U.S. agency securities Yes 5 Years None None
Bankers’ acceptances Yes 180 Days 40% 30%
Negotiable certificates of deposit Yes 1 Year 30% 25%
Commercial paper Yes 270 Days 25% 10%
Repurchase agreements No?! 1 Year None None
Reverse repurchase agreements No 92 Days 20% None
Medium-term notes Yes 5 Years 30% 25%
Mortgage pass — through securities No 5 Years None None
LAIF Yes None None $65,000,000
CA local agency securities Yes 5 Years? 30%3 25%3
Mutual funds No N/A None None
Money market mutual funds Yes N/A 15% 10%
County pooled investment funds No N/A None None
Joint powers authority (CalTRUST) Yes N/A 15% 15%
Investment contracts Yes None None None

* Based upon State law or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive.

1. Only permitted for use in the District’s sweep account.
2. Maturities may exceed 5 years with specific required credit ratings.
3. Investments in the District’s own tendered securities may exceed percentages on a temporary basis.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

INVESTMENTS AUTHORIZED BY DEBT AGREEMENTS

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the
general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The table also identifies certain provisions
of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concentration of risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
U.S. treasury obligations None None None
U.S. agency securities None None None
State obligations or political
subdivision of states None None None
Bankers’ acceptances 1 Year None None
Certificates of deposit None None None
Commercial paper None None None
Guaranteed investment contracts None None None
Repurchase agreements 30 Days None None
Money market mutual funds None None None
LAIF None None None

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion
of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time, as necessary to provide the cash flow and
liquidity needed for operation.




NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments held by bond
trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the table below, which shows the distribution of the District’s
investment by remaining maturity.

Months
Investment Type Total 12 or Less 13to 24 25 to 60

U.S. Agency Securities:

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) S 47,032,080 S 4,986,650 $ 15,003,750 $ 27,041,680

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) - Floating 10,003,100 10,003,100 - -

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 38,912,807 12,098,778 13,735,470 13,078,559

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. (FHLMC) 39,940,800 19,971,100 4,987,250 14,982,450

Federal National Mortgage Assn. (FNMA) 25,640,227 21,939,020 3,701,207 -

Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) 7,646,152 3,003,309 4,642,843 -
Corporate - Fixed 54,287,312 34,079,194 19,584,341 623,777
Money Market Mutual Funds 9,640,603 9,640,603 - -
Municipal 76,734,710 41,406,745 31,123,904 4,204,061
LAIF 92,921,975 92,921,975 - -
Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST) 52,631,744 52,631,744 - -
Commercial Paper 993,438 993,438 - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1,300,178 1,300,178 - -
U.S. Treasury Obligations 32,883,973 29,917,840 2,966,133 -
Held by Trustee:

Money Market Mutual Funds 27,605,484 27,605,484 - -
Total Investments S 518,174,583 S 362,499,158 S 95,744,898 S 59,930,527

INVESTMENTS WITH FAIR VALUE HIGHLY SENSITIVE TO INTEREST RATE RISK

Highly sensitive investments are investments whose sensitivity to market interest rate fluctuations are not fully
addressed by use of one of the five methods for reporting interest rate risk as specified by the GASB No. 40. As of
June 30, 2019, the District had $10,003,100 invested in federal agency securities floating notes.




NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

CREDIT RISK

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

The table below shows the minimum rating required by the California Government Code, the District’s investment

policy, or debt agreements, and the actual Standard and Poor’s Rating Services credit rating as of year-end for each

investment type.

Minimum Rating at June 30, 2019
Category Total Legal Rating AAA AA A Not Rated

U.S. Agency Securities

FFCB S 47,032,080 N/A S - $ 47,032,080 $ - S -

FFCB - Floating 10,003,100 N/A - 10,003,100 - -

FHLB 38,912,807 N/A - 38,912,807 - -

FHLMC 39,940,800 N/A - 39,940,800 - -

FNMA 25,640,227 N/A - 25,640,227 - -

TVA 7,646,152 N/A - 7,646,152 - -
Corporate - Fixed 54,287,312 A 9,987,801 35,632,958 8,666,553 -
Money Market Mutual Funds 9,640,603 AAA* 9,640,603 - - -
Municipal 76,734,710 N/A 2,995,481 73,739,229 - -
LAIF 92,921,975 N/A - - - 92,921,975
CalTRUST 52,631,744 N/A - 31,405,090 21,226,654 -
Commercial Paper 993,438 A - - 993,438 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1,300,178 A - - 1,300,178 -
U.S. Treasury Obligations 32,883,973 N/A - 28,397,329 4,486,644 -
Held by Trustee:

Money Market Mutual Funds 27,605,484 AAA* 27,605,484 - - -
Total Investments S 518,174,583 S 50,229,369 S 338,349,772 S 36,673,467 S 92,921,975

*Money market mutual funds are rated Aaa-mf by Moody's at June 30, 2019. This rating meets minimum rating requirements.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. Investments in any
one issuer other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds and external investment pools that represent five percent
or more of the District’s total investments are shown below as of June 30, 2019:

Issuer

California State
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal Home Loan Bank

Reported

Investment Type Amount
Municipal S 30,376,320
U.S. Agency 57,035,180
U.S. Agency 38,912,807
39,940,800

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp U.S. Agency
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of
the counter party (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and
the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository requlated under state law. The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.
California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2019, 100 percent of the District’s
investments were held in collateralized accounts in the District’s name.

INVESTMENT IN STATE INVESTMENT POOL

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is requlated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of
the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the
District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized
costs of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded at fair market value. Additional information about the State’s LAIF can be found on their website
www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia.laif.

INVESTMENT IN INVESTMENT TRUST OF CALIFORNIA (CALTRUST)

The District is a voluntary participant in CalTRUST, a Joint Powers Authority established by public agencies in
California for the purpose of pooling and investing local agency funds. A Board of Trustees supervises and administers
the investment program of the Trust. CalTRUST invests in fixed income securities eligible for investment pursuant
to California Government Code Sections 53601, et seq. and 53635, et seq. Investment guidelines adopted by the
Board of Trustees may further restrict the types of investments held by the Trust. The fair value of the District’s
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s
pro-rata share of the fair value provided by CalTRUST for the entire CalTRUST portfolio. The balance available
for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by CalTRUST. For purposes of determining fair
market value, securities are normally priced on a daily basis on specified days if banks are open for business and the
New York Stock Exchange is open for trading. The value of securities is determined on the basis of the market
value of such securities or, if market quotations are not readily available, at fair value, under guidelines established
by the Trustees. Investments with short remaining maturities may be valued at amortized cost, which the Board has
determined to equal fair value.



NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (cont'd)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The District categorizes its fair value investments within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019:

Fair Value Hierarchy

Category Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments reported at Fair Value

U.S. Agency

FFCB S 47,032,080 $ - S 47,032,080 S -

FFCB - Floating 10,003,100 - 10,003,100 -

FHLB 38,912,807 - 38,912,807 -

FHLMC 39,940,800 - 39,940,800 -

FNMA 25,640,227 - 25,640,227 -

TVA 7,646,152 - 7,646,152 -
Commercial Paper 993,438 - 993,438 -
Corporate - Fixed 54,287,312 - 54,287,312 -
Municipal 76,734,710 - 76,734,710 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1,300,178 - 1,300,178 -
US Treasury 32,883,972 - 32,883,972 -

Total Investments at Fair Value S 335,374,776 S

S 335,374,776 S -




NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land S 62,655,585 S 2,211,217 S - S 64,866,802

Tunnel Water Seepage Agreement 1,750,900 - - 1,750,900

Construction in progress 183,831,531 109,114,465 (162,477,910) 130,468,086
Total capital assets not being depreciated 248,238,016 111,325,682 (162,477,910) 197,085,788
Capital assets, being depreciated

Water plant, lines and equipment 1,206,082,386 93,069,078 (9,245,257) 1,289,906,207

Water capacity rights 30,074,350 - - 30,074,350

Sewer plant, lines and equipment 1,930,046,536 85,887,307 (4,039,471) 2,011,894,372

Equipment and general facilities 122,650,859 4,599,419 (1,501,065) 125,749,213
Total capital assets being depreciated 3,288,854,131 183,555,804 (14,785,793) 3,457,624,142
Less accumulated depreciation for

Water plant, lines and equipment 506,533,441 42,214,380 (8,672,434) 540,075,387

Water capacity rights 10,231,054 722,730 - 10,953,784

Sewer plant, lines and equipment 661,083,729 48,634,060 (2,498,120) 707,219,669

Equipment and general facilities 85,418,143 6,172,793 (1,096,887) 90,494,049
Total accumulated depreciation 1,263,266,367 97,743,963 (12,267,441) 1,348,742,889
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,025,587,764 85,811,841 (2,518,352) 2,108,881,253
Capital assets, net ) 2,273,825,780 S 197,137,523 S (164,996,262) S 2,305,967,041




NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Ending Ending Due
Balance Balance Within
June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 One Year
Long-Term Debt
Advances for Construction, Notes and Assessments:
CA DWR Prop 204 (HWFP) S 18,734,014 S - S (1,688,695) $ 17,045,319 $ 858,766
SWRCB SRF loan (APAD) 33,273,744 (2,153,458) 31,120,286 2,162,546
SWRCB SRF loan (SCATT) 27,596,784 (1,846,258) 25,750,526 -
SWRCB SRF loan (N. Trumble Pond) 7,115,006 119,932 (216,353) 7,018,585 218,449
Total notes payable 86,719,548 119,932 (5,904,764) 80,934,716 3,239,761
Capital Lease Obligations 1,018 - (1,018) - -
Revenue Bonds:
2011A Refunding 13,585,000 - (4,310,000) 9,275,000 4,525,000
2015A Refunding 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000 -
20158 74,430,000 - - 74,430,000 -
2016A Refunding 200,320,000 - (5,260,000) 195,060,000 5,460,000
20168 Refunding 123,625,000 - (1,350,000) 122,275,000 1,420,000
2017A Refunding 54,810,000 - - 54,810,000 -
2017B Refunding 50,225,000 - - 50,225,000 -
2017C Refunding 17,515,000 - - 17,515,000 -
2017D 102,500,000 - - 102,500,000 -
2017E Refunding 147,640,000 - (147,640,000) - -
2017F Refunding 47,545,000 - (47,545,000) - -
2018A Refunding - 94,455,000 - 94,455,000 -
2018B Refunding - 53,485,000 - 53,485,000 345,000
2018C Refunding - 47,780,000 - 47,780,000 -
Unamortized premium 90,112,446 (4,667,008) 85,445,438 4,667,008
Total revenue bonds 972,307,446 195,720,000 (210,772,008) 957,255,438 16,417,008
General Obligation Bonds:
2005A 11,380,000 - (535,000) 10,845,000 555,000
2009 21,125,000 - (550,000) 20,575,000 580,000
Net unamort prem/disc 340,116 - (20,393) 319,723 20,393
Total GO bonds 32,845,116 - (1,105,393) 31,739,723 1,155,393
Sub-total long term debt 1,091,873,128 195,839,932 (217,783,183) 1,069,929,877 20,812,162
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences 12,098,308 8,626,771 (8,714,709) 12,010,370 8,725,167
Total long-term liabilities $ 1,103,971,436 $ 204,466,703 (226,497,892) S 1,081,940,247 29,537,329




NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

The following schedule summarizes the major terms of outstanding long-term debt:

Revenue
Sources

Lien

Final

Maturity Date

Interest
Rates

Date of Original
Issue Issue
Advances for construction,
notes and assessments:
CA DWR Prop 204 (HWFP) 03/03/05 S 42,098,388
Hemet Water Filtration Plant Construction Project
SWRCB SRF loan (APAD) 09/15/09 43,908,096
Moreno Valley RWRF Acid Phase Anaerobic Digestion Project
SWRCB SRF loan (SCATT) 06/23/09 38,302,852

(a)

(a)

(a)

Moreno Valley RWRF Secondary Clarifier & Tertiary Treatment Expansion Project

SWRCB SRF loan (N. Trumble) 04/26/18 7,455,594

(a)

Recycled Water Pond Optimization Project - N. Trumble & Perris Valley RWRF

Revenue Bonds:

2011A Refunding 07/20/11 56,225,000
2015A Refunding 06/23/15 50,000,000
20158 06/18/15 74,430,000
2016A Refunding 04/05/16 209,230,000
2016B Refunding 09/14/16 124,925,000
2017A Refunding 04/12/17 54,810,000
2017B Refunding 04/12/17 50,225,000
2017C Refunding 05/02/17 17,515,000
2017D 05/18/17 102,500,000
2018A Refunding 09/26/18 94,455,000
2018B Refunding 09/13/18 53,485,000
2018C Refunding 09/13/18 47,780,000
General Obligation Bonds:
2005A 06/07/15 18,255,000
2009 08/12/09 31,625,000

(a) Net water and sewer revenues

(@)
(a)
(@)
(a)
(a)
(@)
(a)
(@)
(a)
(a)
(@)
(a)

(b)
(b)

Subordinate

Subordinate

Subordinate

Subordinate

Senior
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate
Subordinate

N/A
N/A

07/01/28

03/16/33

07/05/32

06/30/47

07/01/20
07/01/39
07/01/39
07/01/39
07/01/35
07/01/35
07/01/38
07/01/23
07/01/47
07/01/46
07/01/30
07/01/46

09/01/35
09/01/39

Imputed -2.273%

0.422%

1.0%

1.0%

4% to 5%
Variable
4% to 5%
2% to 5%
2% to 5%
Variable
Variable
5.0%
5.0% to 5.25%
Variable
Variable
Variable

4% to 5%
4.25% to 5.625%

(b) Ad valorem taxes levied and collected on sixty-one special improvement districts within the District's

service area
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

Future principal and interest requirements on all long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2020 S 16,124,761 S 34,123,740 §$ 50,248,501
2021 19,548,945 33,637,976 53,186,921
2022 21,668,890 32,832,908 54,501,798
2023 22,519,995 31,971,682 54,491,677
2024 23,097,285 31,078,821 54,176,106
2025-2029 141,946,367 141,060,771 283,007,138
2030-2034 167,546,245 114,916,335 282,462,580
2035-2039 200,418,682 82,085,497 282,504,179
2040-2044 199,599,673 51,034,482 250,634,155
2045-2048 171,693,873 14,809,324 186,503,197
Sub-total 984,164,716 567,551,536 1,551,716,252
Add: Unamortized premium/discount 85,765,161 - 85,765,161
Total $ 1,069,929,877 $ 567,551,536 S 1,637,481,413

ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION, NOTES AND ASSESSMENTS

Advances for construction, notes and assessments include project financing agreements executed with the State
of California Department of Water Resources and the State of California Water Resources Control Board between
March 2005 and January 2016. These agreements, detailed in the summary of major terms of outstanding long-
term debt, provide financing for various projects and construction costs.

Future principal payments and interest payments on these advances for construction, notes and assessments are as
follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2020 S 3,239,761 S 395,207 S 3,634,968
2021 6,003,945 805,708 6,809,653
2022 6,073,890 735,763 6,809,653
2023 6,144,995 664,657 6,809,652
2024 6,217,285 592,369 6,809,654

2025-2029 31,161,367 1,834,441 32,995,808
2030-2034 18,591,245 516,324 19,107,569
2035-2039 1,293,682 149,496 1,443,178
2040-2044 1,359,673 83,504 1,443,177
2045-2047 848,873 17,033 865,906

Total

S 80,934,716 S 5,794,502 S 86,729,218




NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

On July 12, 2017, the District executed a project financing agreement with the State of California Water Resources
Control Board to provide financing, under the Clean Water State Revolving Fund, for the Recycled Water Optimization
Program project. This agreement provides $95,264,880 in funding with a future thirty-year loan at an interest rate of
1.8 percent. Contingent on the District’s performance of its obligations under this agreement, the estimated amount
of principal that will be due to the State Water Board is $80,264,880 with the remaining $15.0 million to be awarded
as a grant. The project was substantially completed at the end of the fiscal year and loan repayment is expected to
begin in December 21,2020. Construction advances totaling $6,443,478 for this project were recorded through June
30, 2019.

REVENUE BONDS

The outstanding revenue bonds were issued to provide financing for various projects and facility improvements and
to refund certain prior revenue bonds issued for the purpose of decreasing related debt service costs. Outstanding
revenue bonds are detailed in the summary of major terms of outstanding long-term debt.

Future principal and interest payments on all revenue bonds as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2020 S 11,750,000 $ 32,132,140 S 43,882,140
2021 12,360,000 31,287,212 43,647,212
2022 14,355,000 30,606,286 44,961,286
2023 15,090,000 29,875,656 44,965,656
2024 15,535,000 29,117,889 44,652,889
2025-2029 103,880,000 133,399,124 237,279,124
2030-2034 140,485,000 110,517,731 251,002,731
2035-2039 190,850,000 80,431,801 271,281,801
2040-2044 196,660,000 50,906,541 247,566,541
2045-2048 170,845,000 14,792,291 185,637,291
871,810,000 543,066,671 1,414,876,671
Add: Unamortized premium 85,445,438 - 85,445,438
Total S 957,255,438 $ 543,066,671 $ 1,500,322,109

2018A REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS

In September 2018, the District issued $94,455,000 in refunding revenue bonds, Series 2018A. The net proceeds
were used to current refund a portion of the outstanding 2017E refunding revenue bonds and to pay the cost of
issuance of the 2018A bonds.

The 2018A bonds were issued on the subordinate lien which maintained the debt service coverage on the District’s
outstanding senior debt. The 2018A and 2017E refunding revenue bonds are variable rate debt, therefore, there is no
economic gain or loss resulting from the refunding, other than the cost to underwrite.

The 2018A refunding revenue bonds include principal installments due in varying amounts from $50,000 to $70,000
due annually from July 1, 2024 to July 1, 2030 and varying amounts from $10,370,000 to $13,250,000 due annually
from July 1, 2039 to July 1, 2046. Interest installments for the 2018A bonds are payable monthly at a variable rate
remarketed daily.




NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

2018B REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS

In September 2018, the District issued $53,485,000 in refunding revenue bonds, Series 2018B. The net proceeds were
used to current refund the portion of the outstanding 2017E bonds not refunded from the proceeds of the 2018A
bonds and to pay the cost of issuance of the 2018B bonds.

The 2018B bonds were issued on the subordinate lien which maintained debt service coverage on the District’s
outstanding senior debt. The 2018B and 2017E refunding revenue bonds are variable rate debt, therefore, there is no
economic gain or loss resulting from the refunding other than the cost to underwrite.

The 2018B refunding revenue bonds include principal installments due in varying amounts ranging from $345,000 to
$8,090,000 from July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2030 with an interest rate of 3.10 percent that is synthetically fixed through a
swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank carried forward from the 2017E refunding revenue bonds. Interest is payable
monthly at a variable interest rate based on the SIFMA Index plus 25 basis points.

2018C REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS

In September 2018, the District issued $47,780,000 in refunding revenue bonds, Series 2018C. The net proceeds
were used to current refund the outstanding 2017F refunding revenue bonds and to pay the cost of issuance of the
2018C bonds.

The 2018C bonds were issued on the subordinate lien which maintained debt service coverage on the District’s
outstanding senior debt. The 2018C and 2017F are variable rate debt, therefore, there is no economic gain or loss
resulting from the refunding other than the cost to underwrite.

The 2018C refunding revenue bonds include principal installments due in varying amounts ranging from $5,255,000
to $6,740,000 from July 1, 2039 to July 1, 2046 with partially hedged variable interest rate set at 5.125 percent through
a swap agreement with Wells Fargo Bank carried forward from the 2017F refunding revenue bonds. Interest on the
unhedged portion of the bonds is payable monthly at a variable interest rate remarketed monthly based on an index
of 70 percent of LIBOR plus 30 basis points.

GENERAL OBLIGATION (GO) BONDS

The outstanding general obligation bonds were issued by the Western Riverside Water and Wastewater Financing
Authority in May 2005 and August 2009 to finance certain water and/or sewer facilities for the improvement districts
and to pay the costs of executing and delivering the GO Bonds. The major terms of these bonds are detailed in the
summary of major terms of outstanding long-term debt.
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NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

Future principal and interest payments on total general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2020 S 1,135,000 $ 1,596,393 S 2,731,393
2021 1,185,000 1,545,056 2,730,056
2022 1,240,000 1,490,859 2,730,859
2023 1,285,000 1,431,369 2,716,369
2024 1,345,000 1,368,563 2,713,563
2025-2029 6,905,000 5,827,206 12,732,206
2030-2034 8,470,000 3,882,280 12,352,280
2035-2039 8,275,000 1,504,200 9,779,200
2040 1,580,000 44,437 1,624,437
31,420,000 18,690,363 50,110,363
Add: Unamortized premium 319,723 - 319,723
Total S 31,739,723 S 18,690,363 $ 50,430,086

The general obligation bonds are callable prior to maturity, subject to certain call premiums. The liability for the
general district bonds and improvements within the respective special districts, and the funds for retirement thereof,
are derived from a bond redemption levy based on the assessed valuation within the individual improvement districts.
At June 30, 2019, general obligation bonds authorized but not issued total $547,650,000.

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE FUNDS

The District is required to maintain Debt Service Reserve Funds for two outstanding SRF loans, the Hemet Water
Filtration Plant (HWFP) State Revolving Fund and the North Trumble Pond State Revolving Fund. The HWFP
Reserve Fund will be used for the payment of principal and interest on the Hemet Water Filtration Plant State
Revolving Fund in the event that the District has not provided the Trustee with sufficient funds by the installment
payment date to make the required installment payments. The North Trumble Pond Reserve Fund is equal to one
year's debt service and shall be maintained for the full term of the loan agreement. The current required reserve
amounts and reserve balances at June 30, 2019 for the outstanding SRF loans are as follows:

Excess
Description Required Actual (Deficiency)
Hemet WFP SRF - $4.21M" S 2104920 $§ 2,128953 S 24,033
N. Trumble Pond SRF 288,635 288,635 -
Total Debt Service Reserve Funds S 2393555 $§ 2,417,588 § 24,033

The total required reserve per loan agreement is $2,104,920. Half of this amount is required to be and was deposited
by the first of ten semi-annual payments (July 1, 2013) and the remainder of the balance was required to be deposited
by the tenth year of the repayment period (approximately July 1, 2018).



NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (cont'd)

MASTER RESOLUTION

The District adopted Resolution No. 2667, entitled A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Eastern Municipal
Water District Providing for the Allocation of Water and Sewer Revenues” (the “Master Resolution”) to establish
various reserves and covenants of which the following are required to be maintained:

1. DEBT COVERAGE RATIO

The District has covenanted that Net Water and Sewer Revenues shall be at least 1.15 times the sum of all Debt
Service on all Parity Obligations, plus the amount of all deposits required to be made to the Operating Reserve
Fund. As of June 30, 2019, the District’s parity and subordinate obligation debt service coverage ratios were
35.7 times and 3.5 times, respectively.

2. OPERATING RESERVE FUND

The District has covenanted that it will maintain a minimum of one quarter of its annual maintenance and
operating costs as set forth in its operating budget in a separate reserve fund. The required reserve amount
and the actual reserve balance at June 30, 2019 was $39,153,186 and $44,831,742, respectively.

NOTE 5 - INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS

STANDBY CERTIFICATE PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Included in long-term debt at June 30, 2019 are $249,490,000 Series 2015A, 2017A and 2017B and 2018A Revenue
Bonds (collectively, the Supported Variable Rate Debt). The Supported Variable Rate Debt have a tender provision
for bondholders on seven-day notice, to tender their bonds at par value plus accrued interest. In connection with the
issuance of the Supported Variable Rate Debt, the District executed Standby Purchase Agreements (SPA) between
the Corporation and various banks. The SPA is terminated prior to the expiration date only if there is an occurrence
of “events of defaults”. As of June 30, 2019, there were no outstanding bonds that have been tendered but failed to be
remarketed. The bank and expiration date for each SPA at June 30, 2019 for each Supported Variable Rate Debt is:

SPA Expiration

Description SPA Bank Date

2015A Bond The Toronto Dominion Bank 05/21/21
2017A Bond Sumimoto Mitsui Banking Corp 04/12/22
2017B Bond Sumimoto Mitsui Banking Corp 04/12/22
2018A Bond Bank of America, N.A. 09/27/22

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The fair value balances and notional amounts of financial instruments (instruments) outstanding at June 30, 2019, classified
by type and the changes in fair value of such instruments for the year then ended are shown in the following table.

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2019
Classification Amount  Classification Amount Notional
Cash flow hedges:
2018B Bonds Pay-fixed interest swap
Deferred outflow S (2,884,025) Debt $ (7,600,002) $ 53,485,000
2018C Bonds Pay-fixed interest swap - cost of funds

Deferred outflow $ 298,633 Debt S (333,931) $ 14,750,000




NOTE 5 - INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS (cont'd)

The expected swap cash flows are calculated using the zero-coupon discounting method which takes into consideration
the prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction, and assumes that the
current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market’s best estimate of future spot interest rates. The income
approach is then used to obtain the fair value of the swaps, where future amounts (the expected swap cash flows) are
converted to a single current (discounted) amount, using a rate of return that takes into account the relative risk of
nonperformance associated with the cash flows, and time value of money. The observability of inputs used to perform
the measurement results in the swap fair values being categorized as Level 2.

OBJECTIVE AND TERMS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The District entered into the financial instruments to increase interest rate savings realized by refunding various outstanding
debt. The District realized greater interest savings from debt refinancing by issuing variable interest rate debt along with
the financial instruments than would have been realized had the District issued conventional fixed rate debt.

The following table displays the objective and terms of the District’s financial instruments outstanding at June 30, 2019,
along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty.

Notional Effective Maturity Counterparty
Type Objective Amount Date Date Terms Credit Rating
Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changes in $ 53,485,000 11/01/14 07/01/30 Pay 3.1%, receive S&P: A+
rate swap cash flows on the 2018B 66% of one-month Moody's: Aa2
debt issue LIBOR from WFB
Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changes in S 14,750,000 12/01/14 07/01/20 Pay5.125%, receive  S&P: A+
rate swap cash flows on the 2018C the SIFMA Swap Moody's: Aa2
debt issue Index from WFB

CREDIT RISK

The counterparty credit ratings as of June 30, 2019 are shown in the table above. If the counterparty credit rating is
lowered to or below Baal by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) or BBB+ by Standard & Poor’s (S&P), the financial
instruments may be terminated. The counterparty credit ratings for Wells Fargo Bank either met or exceeded these
rating requirements at June 30, 2019.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The District is exposed to interest rate risk on its financial instruments. As the 1-month LIBOR or the SIFMA Swap Index
decreases, the District’s net payment on the swap increases.

BASIS RISK

The financial instruments expose the District to basis risk, which refers to a mismatch between the interest rate received
from the swap contract and the interest paid on the variable rate payment to be made on the debt. The District is
exposed to basis risk should the floating rate that it receives on a swap be less than the variable rate the District pays on
the bonds. Depending on the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected cost savings from the swap
may not be realized.




NOTE 5 - INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS (cont'd)

TERMINATION RISK

The financial instruments may be terminated by the District or its counterparty if the other party fails to perform under
the terms of the contract. In addition, the District has the option to terminate the financial instruments upon proper
notification to the counterparties. If the financial instruments are terminated, the District would prospectively pay the
variable rates on the 2018B and 2018C bonds rather than fixed rate payments under the financial instruments. The
termination could therefore increase the District’s total debt service. [f, at the time of termination, the financial instrument
is in a liability position, the District would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the negative fair value.

COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS

The financial instruments include provisions that require the District to post collateral in the event the lowest credit rating
assigned to any of its long-term, unenhanced debt secured by a pledge of Net Water and Sewer Revenues falls below
A- as issued by Fitch Ratings, A-as issued by Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, or A3 as issued by Moody's Investors
Service. The collateral posted is required to be in the form of cash or U.S. Treasury securities in the amount of the fair
value of the financial instrument, net of agreed upon adjustments. If the District does not post collateral, the financial
instruments may be terminated by the counterparty. At June 30, 2019, the aggregate fair value of all financial instruments
with these collateral posting provisions is a negative $7,933,933. If the collateral posting requirements were triggered at
June 30, 2019, the District would be required to post $7,933,933 to the counterparty. The District’s credit ratings for its
senior Revenue Bonds were AAA/Aa1/AA+ and the credit ratings for its subordinate Revenue Bonds were AA+/Aa2/
AA+ by Fitch Ratings, Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, respectively; therefore, no
collateral was posted at June 30, 2019.

NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

PLAN DESCRIPTION

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s agent multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), which
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employees. Benefit provisions under
the Plans are established by State statute and local government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that
include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information

that can be found on the CalPERS website.

BENEFITS PROVIDED

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service equal to one
year of full-time employment. The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Hire date Prior to 11/1/10 11/1/10-1/1/13 On or after 1/1/2013
Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-55 62-67
Monthly Benefits as a % of eligible compensation 2.5% 2.0% to 2.5% 2.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.0% 7.0% 5.75%
Required employer contribution rates 8.69% 8.69% 8.69%
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont'd)

EMPLOYEES COVERED

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of the measurement date:

Active Members 601
Transferred Members 77
Terminated Members 112
Retired Members and Beneficiaries 501

Total 1,291

CONTRIBUTION DESCRIPTION

Section 20814 ( ¢ ) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1
following the notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS annual
actuarial valuation report. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate
of employees. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2018 (the measurement date), the District’s average
contribution rate is 16.42 percent of annual payroll. District contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.
It is the responsibility of the District to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any District
Paid Member Contributions or situations where members are paying the portion of the District contribution.

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2018 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was determined
using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% Net of Pension Plan Investment and
Administrative Expenses; includes inflation
Mortality Rate Table’ Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for
all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.0% until Purchasing

Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing
Power applies, 2.5% thereafter

*The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15 years of mortality

improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this table, refer to the
December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS
website.



NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont'd)

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market
return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate
calculated below and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

New Strategic  Real Return Real Return

Asset Class' Allocation Years 1 - 10? Years 11+3
Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.00% 77.00% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%

100.00%

"In the CalPERS CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities;
Liquidity is included in Short-term Investments; Inflation Assets are in both
Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.

2An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.

3An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.




NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont'd)

CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY
The following table shows the changes in net pension liability recognized over the measurement period:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (c) =(a) - (b)
Balance at 6/30/2017 (VD) $429,713,231 $ 297,110,207 $ 132,603,024
Changes Recognized for the
Measurement Period:
Service Cost 8,950,991 - 8,950,991
Interest on the Total Pension
Liability 30,364,075 - 30,364,075
Differences between Expected
and Actual Experience 3,493,286 - 3,493,286
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement - (736) 736
Changes of Assumptions (3,617,710) - (3,617,710)
Contributions - Employer - 10,748,951 (10,748,951)
Contributions - Employees’ - 4,437,439 (4,437,439)
Net Investment Income - 25,160,942 (25,160,942)
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee
Contributions (18,783,862) (18,783,862) -
Administrative Expense - (462,980) 462,980
Other Miscellaneous Income(Expense)’ - (879,206) 879,206
Net Changes during 2017-2018 $ 20,406,780 $ 20,220,548 S 186,232
Balance at 6/30/2018 (MD) $450,120,011  $317,330,755  $ 132,789,256

(VD) Valuation Date

(MD) Measurement Date

Includes both employee contributions and the employer paid member contributions.

2During Fiscal Year 2017-2018, as a result of GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pensions, CalPERS reported its proportionate share of
activity related to postemployment benefits for participation in the State of California's agent
OPEB Plan. Accordingly, CalPERS recorded a one-time expense as a result of the adoption of
GASB 75. Additionally, CalPERS employees participate in various State of California pension plans
during the Fiscal Year 2017-2018, CalPERS recorded a correction to previously reported financial
statements to properly reflect its proportionate share of activitiy related to pensions in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.




NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont'd)

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
-1% Discount +1%
6.15% 7.15% 8.15%
Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 195,151,175 $ 132,789,256 $ 81,194,319

RECOGNITION OF GAINS AND LOSSES

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in
pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining
amounts are categorized as deferred inflows and deferred outflows to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Differences between projected and 5-year straight-line amortization
actual earnings

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the expected
average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) o
all members that are provided with benefits
(active, inactive and retired) as of the
beginning of the measurement period

The EARSL for the Plan for the June 30, 2018 measurement period is 4.7 years, which was obtained by dividing the
total service years of 6,007 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of the active employees) by 1,291 (the total number
of participants: active, inactive and retired). Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0.
Total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than receiving a cash
refund.
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NOTE 6 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont'd)

PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO
PENSIONS

For the measurement period ending June 30, 2018 (the measurement date), the District recognized a pension expense
of $17,348,082 for the plan.

As of June 30, 2019, the District reported other amounts for the Plan as deferred outflow and deferred inflow of resources
related to pensions as follows:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension Contributions Subsequent to
Measurement Date S 12,446,689 S -
Changes in Assumptions 14,093,605 (4,190,833)
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience 2,750,034 (1,885,676)
Net Difference between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 145,723 -
Total S 29,436,051 S (6,076,509)

The $12,446,689 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Period Outflows/(Inflows)
Ending June 30 of Resources
2019 S 6,771,509
2020 5,323,790
2021 (331,438)
2022 (851,008)

2023 -
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NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The District maintains the EMWD 401(a) Plan, a defined contribution money purchase pension plan that is qualified
under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The District has an agreement with Nationwide Retirement Solutions
(Nationwide) whereby Nationwide receives, invests, and reports on the funds sent to them on behalf of eligible
employees. Contribution requirements of the District are established and may be amended through the memorandum
of understanding between the District and its Union. Employees are vested in the funds contributed on their behalf after
one year of service and have several investment options within the lineup of funds available at Nationwide. The 401(a)
Plan was adopted in January 1978 and may be amended by the District, provided Nationwide joins in such amendment.
The District’s required contributions to the 401(a) Plan are 7.15 percent of each eligible employee’s compensation, up to a
maximum annual compensation of $16,500. The District's contribution to the 401(a) Plan was $779,568 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019.

In July 2011, the District executed a plan amendment to its 401(a) Plan to provide for a contribution to this 401(a) Plan on
behalf of the General Manager in accordance with his employment contract. Contribution to this 401(a) Plan was $47,162
in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

The district provides a voluntary 457(b) deferred compensation plan for employees to contribute to their retirement on
a tax-deferred basis. In October 2013, the District executed an amendment to its 401(a) Plan to provide for a matching
contribution for those employees contributing to the 457(b) deferred compensation plan. The District's matching
contributions will be paid into the 401(a) plan equal to 100 percent of an employee’s 457(b) contribution at a rate of 2.0
percent in Year 1 of the labor contract (July 24, 2016 to December 31, 2017), 3.0 percent in Year 2 (January 1, 2018 to
December 31, 2018), and 4.0 percent in Year 3 (January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019). Matching contributions to the
401(a) plan totaled $1,531,984 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION

PLAN DESCRIPTION

Health Care Benefits - The District provides postemployment health care benefits to all qualified employees who meets
the District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) plan requirements. This plan is an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan. This plan contributes an amount for the retiree and dependents, as applicable, with
eligibility based on the Health Benefit Vesting Requirements found in Government Code 22893 (Vesting for Contracting
Agency Employees). This amount of District's contribution varies according to the retiree’s medical benefit tiers as
follows:

Tier 1 (hired prior to August 1, 2005) -The District’s contribution is 100 percent of the coverage level elected by the
retiree up to the greater of the basic monthly rate under PEMHCA for the Blue Shield HMO or Kaiser HMO.

Effective for the 2018 calendar year, the District’s contribution is 100 percent of the coverage level elected by the retiree
up to the maximum of $684 per month for single coverage, $1,367 per month for two-party coverage and $1,772 per
month for family coverage. The District’s contribution consists of the CalPERS statutory minimum required contribution
of $133 per month for 2018 and $136 per month for 2019 and a contribution through a health reimbursement arrangement
(HRA). Retirees in the Kaiser A HMO are required to pay a monthly contribution based on the family coverage category
elected. The District's contribution towards retiree medical benefits is paid for the lifetime of the eligible retiree or the
surviving spouse upon the death of the eligible retiree.




NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (cont'd)

Tier 2 (hired from August 1, 2005 to March 26, 2014) - The District’s contribution is 100 percent of the coverage level
elected by the retiree up to the greater of the same contribution amount as a retiree hired prior to August 1, 2005
multiplied by a vesting schedule or the 100/90 amount per PEMHCA. The 100/90 amount is 100 percent of the
weighted average of single coverage and 90 percent of the weighted average of additional premium for the two-party
and family coverage for the four PEMHCA plans with the highest State enrollment in the prior year (for 2018: $725 per
month for single, $1,377 per month for two-party and $1,766 per month for family). The vesting percentages, according
to PEMHCA Section 22893, range from 50 percent to 100 percent for retirees with service of ten years to 20 years or
more. The District’s contribution consists of the CalPERS statutory minimum required contribution of $133 per month for
2018 and $136 per month for 2019 and a contribution through a health reimbursement arrangement (HRA). The District's
contribution towards retiree medical benefits is paid for the lifetime of the eligible retiree or the surviving spouse upon
the death of the eligible retiree.

Tier 3 (hired after March 26, 2014) - The District’s contribution is the PEMHCA minimum required contribution of $ $133
per month in 2018 and $136 per month for 2019.

The District also provides healthcare benefits to elected official retirees in accordance with the District's Administrative
Code. This plan contributes up to the District’s contribution amount for employees and dependent coverage.

Life Insurance Benefits - In addition, the District provides postemployment group life insurance to eligible retired
employees and elected officials with a death benefit of $10,000 up to age 70 and $5,000 thereafter for retired employees;
and a death benefit of $5,000 up to age 70 and $2,500 thereafter for elected officials.

The benefit provisions for retiree employee health care and life insurance are established and amended through the
memorandum of understanding between the District and the Union. The benefit provisions for retired elected official
life insurance are established through the District’s contract with the life insurance company. The District does not issue
separate stand-alone financial reports for these plans.

EMPLOYEES COVERED

As of the June 30, 2018 measurement date, the following current and former employees were covered by the benefit
terms under the Plan:

Active employees 610
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 404

Total 1,014




NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (cont'd)

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contribution requirements of the District are established and may be amended through the memorandum of
understanding between the District and its union. The contribution requirements of the District for retired elected officials
may be amended through Board action to update the Ordinance 70, for the health benefit plan, or with the life insurance
company, for the life insurance benefits. The District’s policy is to achieve full funding of its unfunded actuarial accrued
or net OPEB liability by fiscal year 2033-2034. The District’s funding practice is to fund at least the actuarially determined
contribution, inclusive of direct payments for retiree health payments and the implied subsidy, which is determined based
on the normal cost plus an amortization of the net (unfunded accrued) OPEB liability over a reasonable period of time
(currently fifteen years). For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District's cash contributions were $18,524,700 in
payments to the trust and the estimated implied subsidy was $716,238.

On April 18, 2012, the District’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to establish an OPEB Trust and to authorize an
agreement with PERS to join the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Program. On June 12, 2012, the
District joined the CERBT Program, an agent multiple-employer plan consisting of an aggregation of single-employer
plans. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information relating to the CERBT program. The report can be obtained through their website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

NET OPEB LIABILITY

The District’s net OPEB liability was measured on June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2017 based on the following actuarial methods
and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.00%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.00% plus merit
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 % per year; assumes the Distrcit invests in the

CERBT asset allocation Strategy 1 with a margin of
adverse deviation of 28 bps

Mortality Rate’ Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all
funds

Pre-Retirement Turnover? Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all
funds

Healthcare Trend Rate Recent premium experience assuming 1% to 1.50%

increase/decrease due to market trends then
reduced to a rate reflecting medical price inflation

Notes:

'Pre-retirement mortality information was derived from the pre-retirement mortality rates under the CalPERS pension
plan updated to reflect the most recent experience study projected with mortality improvement scale AA. The Experience
Study Reports may be accessed on the CalPERS website, www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications.

’The pre-retirement turnover information was developed based on the termination rates under the CalPERS pension
plan.
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NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (cont'd)

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the

OPEB plan’s target allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Strategy 1
Long-Term
Target Expected

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 57.00% 5.50%
REITS? 8.00% 4.50%
Global Fixed Income 27.00% 2.25%
Commodities 3.00% 1.25%
TIPS 5.00% 1.25%
Total 100.00%

TIPS - Treasury Inflation Protected Securities

2REITS - Real Estate Investment Trusts

Long-term expected rate of return is 7.00 percent.

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate used to measure total OPEB liability was 7.00 percent, assuming full funding by 2033/2034.

CHANGES IN OPEB LIABILITY

Balance at 6/30/2018 (VD June 30, 2017)
Changes Recognized for the
Measurement Period:

Service Cost

Interest

Contributions from the Employer

Net Investment Income

Benefit Payments

Administrative Expense

Other

Net Changes

Balance at 6/30/2019 (MD June 30, 2018)

(VD) Valuation Date
(MD) Measurement Date
68

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
$106,318,423

3,154,255
7,509,723

(4,381,840)

Increase (Decrease)

Fiduciary Net
Position
(b)
$ 38,399,988

17,947,401
3,861,399
(4,381,840)
(26,780)
(50,818)

Net OPEB
Liability
(c)=(a) - (b)
$ 67,918,435

3,154,255
7,509,723

(17,947,401)

(3,861,399)
26,780
50,818

$ 6,282,138

$ 17,349,362

$ (11,067,224)

$ 112,600,561

$ 55,749,350

$ 56,851,211




NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (cont'd)

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET OPEB OBLIGATION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for the measurement period ended June 30, 2018:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Net OPEB Liability S 73,761,741 S 56,851,211 S 44,258,540

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE HEALTH CARE COST TREND RATES

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that
are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for the measurement period ended
June 30, 2018:

Current Healthcare

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase
(5.00%HMC/5.50%PPO (6.00%HMC/6.50%PPO (7.00%HMC/7.50%PPO
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
4.00%HMO/4.00%PPO) 5.00%HMO/5.00%PPO) 6.00%HMO/6.00%PPO)
Net OPEB Liability S 42,256,169 S 56,851,211 S 76,525,463

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense
systematically over time.

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are
categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future

OPEB expense.

OPEB EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO OPEB

For fiscal year June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $7,223,073. As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date S 19,240,938 S -
Differences between actual and projected earnings - 1,215,538

Total $ 19,240,938 S 1,215,538




NOTE 8 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (cont'd)

The $19,240,938 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the June 30, 2018
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Periods Outflows (Inflows)
Ended June 30 of Resources
2019 S (358,425)
2020 (358,425)
2021 (358,423)
2022 (140,265)

2023 -

NOTE 9 - RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Net Position restricted for debt service/covenants represent constraints required by the District’s Master Resolution and
third party general obligation bondholders.

Net Position restricted for construction represent constraints on legally restricted funds received and unspent from
developers as required by State law.

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

As required by GASB Statement No. 34, net position has been classified according to guidelines established for restricted
net position. The unrestricted net position, although not legally restricted, has been established pursuant to Board
Resolution No. 3359 and is primarily composed of reserves for various purposes.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

The District is committed to approximately $149,598,790 of open construction contracts as of June 30, 2019. The
contracts with the largest remaining balances include:

Contract Balance To

Amount Complete
Perris Il Desalination Facility S 50,018,999 S 45,389,000
Temecula Valley Recycled Water Pipeline 9,420,000 8,120,982
Solar Renewable Energy Initiative Phase Il 7,403,316 6,464,872
Pala Sewer Force Main Project 2,980,204 2,342,012
Reach 4 Recycled Water Booster Station Upgrade 2,844,737 2,117,037
TVRWREF Air Line Replacement Project 2,066,377 1,689,177
OMC Laboratory Modification Project 2,744,048 1,541,948
Winchester Lift Station Odor Control Facility 1,531,800 1,531,800
Fox Street 1MG Tank & Pipeline Project 3,551,647 970,537
Wells 201, 202 & 203 Drilling and Testing 5,848,870 882,844

TOTAL $ 88,409,998 $ 71,050,209




NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS (cont'd)
CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, and destruction of assets, error and
omissions, road and walkway design hazards, vehicle accidents and flooding for which the District maintains various
insurance programs. The District has entered into contracts to oversee and administer these programs.

The District maintains excess insurance coverage of $10,000,000 per occurrence with a $750,000 self-insured retention
per incident for losses sustained because of liability imposed on the District by the Workers" Compensation Act. For
general liability, the District maintains excess insurance coverage of $30,000,000 per occurrence with a $1,000,000 self-
insured retention.

Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. The liability for claims and judgments is included in other accrued expenses. The District did not have any non-
incremental claims adjustment expenses that needed to be included as part of the unpaid claims liability. In November
2012, a workers compensation claim stipulation was reached, which included a present value of $5.3 million in future
payments calculated using a discount rate of 3 percent over 30 years. Changes in claims payable for the years ended
June 30 are as follows:

Beginning Ending Due
Balance Balance Within
June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2019 One Year
General Liability S 324,743 $ 129,490 S (347,254) S 106,979 S 106,979
Workers Compensation 6,618,821 1,031,535 (1,541,774) 6,108,582 606,126

S 6,943,564 $ 1,161,025 S (1,889,028) S 6,215,561 S 713,105

2019 2018
Unpaid claims, beginning S 6,943,564 S 7,223,776
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 1,161,025 1,230,969
Claim Payments (1,889,028) (1,511,181)
Unpaid claims, ending S 6,215,561 S 6,943,564

There was no significant reduction in insurance coverage by major categories of risk from fiscal year 2018 to 2019. There
were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage for the three prior fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2017
and June 30, 2016. However, the stipulation discussed above did exceed the District’s coverage at the time of the legal
decision and the District subsequently purchased excess insurance coverage.

SOBOBA SETTLEMENT ACT

The District is a party to the Soboba Settlement Act (Act). This Act was signed into Law by the President of the United
States of America on July 31,2008 and approved the Settlement Agreement between the Soboba Band of Luisefio Indians;
the United States of America (as trustee for the Soboba Tribe); the Lake Hemet Municipal Water District (LHMWD),
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), and the District. The Soboba Tribe negotiated a water
rights claim with these local water districts for the Tribe’s lost water resources from springs and creeks on its reservation
caused by construction of the San Jacinto Tunnel by MWD and by construction of Lake Hemet by the LHMWD. Notice
regarding the statement of findings for the act was published in the Federal Register on November 28, 2011 and the
Settlement Agreement became enforceable.
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

The Settlement Agreement provides that:
a. The Tribe shall have a senior rights to 9,000 acre feet of water each year;
b. The local agencies shall develop a groundwater management plan (and a committee to operate that plan);

c. The District shall contract with MWD for a long term water supply agreement to bring 7,500 acre feet of addi
tional imported settlement water into the area each year to meet the current and future needs;

d. The local agencies shall construct facilities to bring in the additional water and recharge it into the groundwater
basin;

e. The groundwater management plan is to include arrangements between the municipal pumpers in the area (
LHMWD, the cities of Hemet and San Jacinto, and the District) regarding limitations on pumping from the
groundwater basin;

f. The federal government shall provide some funding for compliance with the agreement; and,

g. MWD and the District will transfer land that each agency owns to the Tribe in full satisfaction of the tribe’s dam
ages because of construction of the San Jacinto Tunnel.

The District’s share for the construction of the facilities and use of Tribe's water is estimated to be $8,966,222. The District
and local agencies established a financing plan for the construction costs of the facilities. This plan is based upon the
repayment schedule for the 2008H COP (while the 2008H COP has been refunded, it does not change the Soboba
repayment schedule) and requires the local agencies to contribute towards principal payments totaling $12,998,778 and
interest payments at their proportionate share. All amounts paid or accrued relating to the financing plan are recorded
on the District’s books.

In association with this settlement agreement, the stipulated judgment required that a watermaster be established to
develop and implement a groundwater management plan and administer the provisions of the judgment. The Hemet-
San Jacinto Watermaster (Watermaster) was established on April 18, 2013 and began operations in June 2013. Prior to
formation of the Watermaster, the local agencies established an interim plan for imported water deliveries from MWD for
in-lieu and replenishment water. The local agencies have agreed that the District will continue to purchase and deliver in-
lieu and replenishment settlement water and bill the agencies directly on behalf of the Watermaster. The District recorded
a $1,000,984 receivable from the agencies on behalf of the Watermaster for outstanding billings of imported settlement
water deliveries as of June 30, 2019.

The first quarter of calendar year 2018 experienced drier weather and below average snow pack conditions. During this
period, 4,782 acre feet of imported settlement water was available for recharge to meet the calendar year 2018 required
settlement obligation leaving a balance of 2,718 acre feet of undelivered 2018 settlement water. Favorable weather and
snow pack conditions in early calendar 2019 resulted in the District importing 6,401 acre feet for recharge in the first half
of 2019 leaving a balance of 1,099 acre feet to meet the 7,500 acre feet obligation for imported settlement water. The
District’s share of imported settlement water recorded in fiscal year 2019 was 2,156 acre feet.

In June 2013, the District established a methodology for valuing its share of the native groundwater in the Hemet-San
Jacinto Groundwater Basin, including additions and withdrawals. The District recorded $11,993,048 in water inventory
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The District's methodology identifies various water layers in the basin and assigns
a zero dollar value to native water, with additions of imported settlement water valued at purchased cost and withdrawals
valued at a weighted average cost of all inventory layers.



NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

The following table illustrates the changes in water inventory for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2019
Acre feet 79,509 15,127 (9,667) 84,969
Dollar value S 8,159,969 S 4,825,190 $ (992,111) $ 11,993,048

SPECIAL FUNDING DISTRICT BONDS

These bonds are not direct liabilities of the District, and their payment is secured by valid liens on certain lands. Reserves
have been established from the bond proceeds to meet delinquencies, should they occur. Neither the faith and credit
nor the taxing power of the District is pledged to the payment of the Bonds. If delinquencies occur beyond the amounts
held in those reserves, the District has no duty to pay those delinquencies out of any other available funds. The District
acts solely as an agent for those paying assessments or special taxes and the bondholders. The Special Funding District
Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2019 was $210,274,283. These are not included in the District’s financial statements.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES

The District is a defendant in various legal actions. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these actions will
not have a significant effect on the District’s financial position or results of operations.

NOTE 12 - SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY

The District became a member of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) in September 1984. SAWPA
was formed in 1975, pursuant to the provisions of Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of
the State of California relating to the joint exercise powers common to public agencies. The purpose of SAWPA is to
undertake projects for water quality control and protection and pollution abatement in the Santa Ana Watershed. The
authority is governed by a 5-member Commission, consisting of one member from each of the five-member agencies;
an alternate from each member agency is also designated. The Commission members select a Commissioner and an
alternate.

According to the latest available audited financial statements, as of June 30, 2018 SAWPA had total assets of $177,074,117
and total net position of $68,676,959. SAWPA Financial Statements can be obtained by contacting SAWPA at 11615
Sterling Avenue, Riverside, CA 92503 or at www.sawpa.org. The District does not have a measurable equity interest in

SAWPA.
NOTE 13 - ADVANCES FROM DEVELOPERS

The District receives deposits from developers in advance to cover various costs for both sewer and water related projects.
At June 30, 2019, the amount of refundable deposits was $24,236,294. When a project is closed, the developer is refunded
only the amount remaining after offsetting all accumulated construction in progress costs. If costs exceed the deposit
amount during the project, the developer is billed for additional deposits.
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EMWD is advancing the
implementation of Phase Il
of the Solar Photovoltaic
Renewable Energy Initiative
which will include the
installation of solar arrays
and appurtenances at five

EMWD locations.
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EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2019

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
DURING THE MEASUREMENT PERIOD

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Measurement Period 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost S 8,950,991 S 8,944,792 S 7,843,422 S 7,679,279 S 7,775,568
Interest 30,364,075 28,922,504 27,711,744 26,241,865 24,817,574
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience 3,493,286 (3,044,287) (377,219) (117,683) -
Changes of Assumptions (3,617,710) 24,934,841 - (6,714,237) -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (18,783,862) (16,384,470) (15,077,250) (13,746,546) (13,419,729)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 20,406,780 43,373,380 20,100,697 13,342,678 19,173,413
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 429,713,231 386,339,851 366,239,154 352,896,476 333,723,063
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) S 450,120,011 S 429,713,231 S 386,339,851 S 366,239,154 S 352,896,476

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer S 10,748,951 S 9,699,290 S 8,782,080 S 8,161,529 S 7,786,103
Contributions - Employee 4,437,439 4,294,049 4,187,293 4,204,174 4,510,815
Net Investment Income 25,160,942 30,717,223 1,420,440 6,028,932 40,103,890
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (18,783,862) (16,384,470) (15,077,250) (13,746,546) (13,419,729)
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement (736) 2,059 - - -
Administrative Expense (462,980) (397,425) (164,570) (303,937) -
Other Miscellaneous Income(Expense)' (879,206) - - - -
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 20,220,548 27,930,726 (852,007) 4,344,152 38,981,079
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning? 297,110,207 269,179,481 270,031,488 265,687,336 226,706,257
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) $ 317,330,755 $ 297,110,207 S 269,179,481 S 270,031,488 S 265,687,336
Plan Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) S 132,789,256 S 132,603,024 S 117,160,370 S 96,207,666 S 87,209,140
Pension Liability 70.50% 69.14% 69.67% 73.73% 75.29%
Covered Payroll S 52,372,367 S 53,441,059 S 51,405,543 S 50,202,213 S 48,184,720
Plan Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 253.55% 248.13% 227.91% 191.64% 180.99%

*Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only five years are shown above.

1 During Fiscal Year 2017-18, as a result of GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plan Other than Pensions, CalPERS reported its
proportionate share of activity related to postemployment benefits for participation in the State of California's agent OPEB plan. Accordingly, CalPERS recorded a one-
time expense as a result of the adoption of GASB 75. Additionally, CalPERS employees participated in various State of California agent pension plans and during Fiscal
Year 2017-2018, CalPERS recorded a correction to previously reported financial statements to properly reflect its proportionate share of activity related to pensions

in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting & Financial Reporting for Pensions.

2 Includes any beginning of year adjustment.

Notes To Schedule:

Benefit Changes: The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which
occurred after the June 30, 2017 valuation date. This applies to voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two

Years Additional Service Credit.

Changes in Assumptions: |In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the
discount rate. In 2017, the discount rate was reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. |n 2016, there were no changes.
In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to
7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense.) In 2014, amounts reported were based on the
7.5 percent discount rate.
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SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution S 12,446,689 S 10,748,951 S 9,699,290 S 8,782,080 S 8,160,464
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contribution (12,446,689) (10,748,951) (9,699,290) (8,782,080) (8,160,464)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) S - S - S - S - S -
Covered Payroll S 53,670,440 S 52,372,367 S 53,441,059 S 51,405,543 $ 50,202,213
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered

Payroll 23.19% 20.52% 18.15% 17.08% 16.26%

*Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only five years are shown above.

Notes To Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2018-19 were
from the June 30, 2016 public agency valuations.
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Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period

Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increase

Payroll Growth
Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Entry Age Normal Cost

20-year period with a 5-year ramp-up/ramp do\
in accordance with CalPERS Board policy."
Market Value of Assets’

2.75%

Varies by entry age and service

3.00%

7.375%, net of Pension Plan Investment Expens
includes inflation.

The probabilities of Retirement are based on
the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the
period from 1997 to 2011.

The probabilities of mortality are based on the
2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period
1997 to 2011. Pre-retirement and Post-retireme
mortality rates include twenty years of projecte
mortality improvement using Scale BB publishe
by the Society of Actuaries.

" For details, see June 30, 2016 Funding Valuation Report



SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
DURING THE MEASUREMENT PERIOD*

Measurement Period 2018 2017

Service Cost S 3,154,255 S 2,947,902
Interest 7,509,723 7,081,960
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (4,381,840) (3,868,785)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 6,282,138 6,161,077
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 106,318,423 100,157,346
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) S 112,600,561 S 106,318,423

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer S 17,947,401 S 18,111,235
Net Investment Income 3,861,399 3,066,258
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (4,381,840) (3,868,785)
Administrative Expenses (26,780) (16,558)
Other Expense (50,818) -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position S 17,349,362 S 17,292,150
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 38,399,988 21,107,838
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) S 55,749,350 $ 38,399,988
Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a) - (b) S 56,851,211 $§ 67,918,435
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total

OPEB Liability 49.5% 36.1%
Covered Employee Payroll S 50,161,738 $§ 51,050,693
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Employee Payroll 113.3% 133.0%

*Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown above.

SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2019 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution S 10,934,835 S 10,833,584

Contributions in Relation to ADC 19,240,938 17,947,401
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) S (8,306,103) S (7,113,817)
Covered Employee Payroll S 50,222,639 S 50,161,738
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 38.31% 35.78%

*Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown above.




SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS, LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (cont.)

Notes to Schedule

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2019 were from
the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/Period Level percent of payroll over a closed rolling 15-year period
Asset Valuation Method Market value
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3% per annum, in aggregate
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% per annum. Assumes investing in California Employers' Retiree
Benefit Trust asset allocation Strategy 1.
Healthcare cost-trend rates Medical costs are adjusted in future years by the following trends:
Year PPO HMO
2018 Actual Actual
2019 6.5% 6.0%
2020 6.0% 5.5%
2021 5.5% 5.0%
2022+ 5.0% 5.0%
Retirement Age According to the retirement rates under the most recent CalPERS pension

plan experience study. According to the following retirement tables:
Employees hired before 11/4/2010: 2.5%@55 (Tier 1)
Employees hired on or after 11/4/2010: 2% @55 (Tier 2)
Employees hired on or after 1/1/2013:

Classic: 2% @55

New Member: 2%@62

Mortality The probabilities of Retirement are based on the most recent CalPERS

pension plan experience study.
Pre-retirement mortality probability based on 2014 CalPERS 1997-2011
Experience Study covering CalPERS participants. Post-retirement mortality
probabilitly based on CalPERS Experience Study 2007-2011 covering
participants in CalPERS.

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.

Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.




An expansion project
for the Temecula Valley
Regional Water Reclamation
Facility is currently in the final
stage of construction to
increase capacity to 23 million
gallons per day. The expansion
project included new primary,
secondary, tertiary, solids
handling, and effluent
pumping facilities.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of the Districts comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the accompanying financial statements, notes disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health.

CONTENTS

FINANCIAL TRENDS

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the District's ability to generate
revenues.

DEBT CAPACITY

These schedules presentinformation to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the District’s financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other agencies.

OPERATING INFORMATION

These schedules contain information about the District’s operations and resources to help the reader understand how the
District’s financial information relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.

SOURCES

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports
for the relevant year.



*(068'8L1°9TS) 40 3uswisn(pe poad Joud 1au e sapnjoul

uonisod 1au ul ddueleq ay3 ‘uonejudWIdw! gSYO SIY3 JO NSal e Sy "8TOT ‘OF dUNr Papua Jeah [edsiy Yl 4oy G/ "ON JUBWIEIS SYD PajuaWa|dwi PLISIQ YL ,
*(€88°657'€0TS) 40 1uswisn(pe pouad Jold 38U e sapnjoul

uoljisod 1au ul due|eq ay) ‘uoliejuawa|dwi gSYO SIY) JO 3 NSaJ B Sy ‘STOZ ‘OE duUn( papua JeaA [eIs|) 3y .10} T/ PUB 89 "SON JUaWale1s gSyo pajuswa|dwio1Isig 9yl

1910N
%L'S %T'T %80 %6°C %L+ %C'C %E°0- %L°0 %60 %9't asealnu| 9%
6/€'99.9€9'T $ ¥S9°LT8'8YS'T $ E€V9'TESTEST S SPT'SIS0CST 898°0L9°LLY'T S 976'TLS'0SS'T $ L61°606°LTS'T S 0v6'686'T¢S'T S G98°G98‘TIS'T $ 9¥8'tSy'86Y'T S uonisod iau [e30|
¥6€°0267ST 89987876 ¥£0°09€°79 (198'7L6°T) (069'2¥8°) €6L°€SEVET 885°CTS '8V 0vS'£98°9CT GSP'8LY 9ET 0¥9°67¢'6CT papusalun
SE0‘TIT9 SEV'LT8'€C €/57€9°09 888°G97'8€ 9EV‘LYE OV 750661 ‘St 6v7SLE'IS T09€15'66 997°€80°LTT 79€'L16°0ST U011ON1ISU0D 40} PIDLISAY
18800798 TLE'6ST08 8S€L0C'TL 86987€'08 G8L°689'7L €19'529°0L 0€7'89T'€L 06C€EE Y9 ETEEEY'S9 85906059 SJUBUSA0D/3DINIDS
109p 404 pa1dIIISAY
690'782'68€'T S 08T°Z86'6VE'T S 8E9'TEE'BEET S 0TY'SL8'E0V'T LEE'ILY'OLET S 99v‘€6€°00E'T OET'ESL'6ETT 60SSLT'TECT S T€80/8°C8T'T $ 98T'GST'ESTT $ syasse |ejided

6T0C

8102

LT0C

uljuawisaAnul 19N

910C 15102 10T €T0C (4574 TT0C 0t0C

SJead |easid uaj iseq
jusauodwo) Aq uoinisod 19N

PUISIg Ja3e M [edPIUN|A uId)ses

NOILD3S TVIOILSILVLS

81



"1eaA |easly e ul SN0 350|2 393[04d pue ANAIIIE UOIIINIISUOD JO SWN|OA By} 0} NP 3.e [eNded PAINGLIU0D Ul SUOIeNIdN|Y

1S910N
STL'8Y6'L8 T€8Y99'9S ¥68'€8T'T€E 98.150°C6 (z68°29L'09) v0E'LTT9TT 766'695'9LT CETTLO60T [AAWA XA 610C
T06'79LCE €6¥'S0V' 1T 80¥'65€TT LL0'9€09L (699'929'%9) 896'TE8VCT 08T°7S€08T €T9'8L0°S0T 998'8CVSET 810¢
86¥°9T0CT 9/8'T97'1T (050°LLE'6) 0v0'6€V'T9 (8T¥'¥89°0L) 687'8LC'VTT TS€'S09°29T G87‘8CE00T L€6°0£8°0TT L102
LLT'VY8TY 6€0'979'LE 8E€T'86T'S L19'SL9'SL (6L€"LLV'OL) TT8'8LLTTT 859'686'7ST G99'€€R'E6 9TV LSYTIT 910¢
G78'8S€°0€ CT0'TTT'6S (£81258'87) GEV'T66'6Y (zeo'vve'sL) 968'T8L9TT 9YT1L8C9T 897'€TS'E8 TST'S6TLTT ST0C
67L799°C€E 80€'978'8Y (6£5°€9191) 979'18¢€'LS (soz'sys'es) 96€°0CLTTT 06V'vLL'€9T 905'SCT'6L SLT'VTL'TTT v10¢
(T69'%S) ST8'9vY0E (9T5'T0S0€) G90'8CS'SY (T85'620"92) ¥T1°69T°80T i'0S6'vST TLT'€EE9VL ¥08°9SY'TTT €102
SL0'vTT0T 6/8°0€£°9S (¥08°9099Y) 19L'Sy8'€E (595zst'08) 861°08LL0T LS6'TESBYT 8Y9'8TTTL We'TrL Y0t Z10¢
6TO'ETH'ET €LT'0€S6€E (¥STLTT'92) €V0'80T'TY (,6T'S52€°L9) 6059186 L88'T86'LET ¥S9VITL9 S¥5°600°20T 1T0C
L08'786'8€ LE9'69€'6Y (0€8‘98¢'0T1) 769'T69°TS (zes'8Loz9) €VC'T0€'96 €LTTIV'VET €96°££6'99 TE0'LYL 20T 0102
uonisod ﬂmce_“:._s_..u._‘_cu suonnquiuo) Awwm:wnxwv SSO1 Jolemoalse J9le\ Jolemalse J9le\ JBIA
19N Ul |ende) |ende) aio0j2g /sanuanay Sunesado sasuadx3 S9NUINDY |easi4

aduey) awodu| Sunesado-uop Sunesado Sunesado

siea |edsl4 uaj i1seq
uonisod 13N ui sasuey)
1MIsIqg 193/ jedidiunip] uidlse]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

82



y0m@ s;uein 125001 @ s394 UUOH @ Agqpueis@ soxe| @ papioeym 1omas @ uonesiu| @ Jnsswogm@
6102 810¢ 102 9102 Sloe 102 €102 cloc 1102 0L0c

=

w
¥6S°LT8'SLE %8¢ 869'6TT'VT %10 0sz'zLe %Y T00%Z6'ST %SVT 00659975 %9'T £L0'878'S %S'TT ¥92'880°EY %6'T TT9'vE0’L %L LT 0T9'LE0T0T %E'T S6L'STO'S %0'7€ LLETES'LTT 6T0C
895'9LL'9SE P 20£'260'ST %S0 790°9%9'T %L'T 8L0'€E0'9 %CET SL8'VT6'9Y %9'T €58'69L'S %v'TT 61620807 %S'T £78'820'6 %69 98L'6¥0'96 %V'T 679'2€8'Y %9'9€ LET'96S0ET 8102
Tv0'96E'STE %T'S 078'6€79T %0°0 TL9TET %80 05£'059'C %S'TT L61'5950F %8'T LSE'TES'S %6'TT ¥20'8L5'8€ %V 691°26L'L %'8C 9TT'9ESC6 %9'T 20S'vL0'S %9'S€ SEV'96L'STT L10T
865'8€0'8TE %8S VEL'ETEBT %00 - %9'T £56'950'S %v'vT ¥8LSTL'SY %8'T wTvsL's %9'TT 06L9.8'9€ %T'T 608'8%9'9 %' LT 958'v81'L8 %9'T STLLET'S %L'EE 80L'6TEL0T 910z
€00TT6'8LT %6°€ €T9'VES0T %90 9T6'LTLT %670~ (£29'e65'T) %1°0T ST9'L0E'S8T %L'T 99Y'SEL'S %C'TT 08500TvE %E'T €9L°T6€'9 %L'LT S0S‘0ZT'LL %C'T Tr9'SEV'E %801 TIS'6S8'ETT ST0T
169768587 %V'E 0497796 %€'0 YL¥'696 %L'T €8S'ET6'Y %S0T T98'6vT°0E %0'C T6500L'S %v'TT LE8'8LSTE %T'T 0zY'szT'9 %9'ST 980°00T‘EL %V'T 2206207 %S’V €ST'S69'8TT 102
0TY'80T'85¢C %LE TZE'6LS'6 %80 €19250C %E0 SE6'TES %6°L S8T'V9E0T %C'T EST'SEY'S %9°CT 8TT'SSSTE %C'T €V0'9L9'S %L9T 8Z1°L56'89 %80 079'886'T %8y ¥6189Y0TT €T0C
Y’ LSY'IVT WLV TIS'EESTT %C'0 S8T'ELE WL'E £25'807'6 %67 978'0ST'ZT %E'T 199°009's %6'CT 0SL'0EL'TE %L'T 98T'SET'S %89 97'€86'S9 %90 6E0'STS'T %6'T €07'92T'€0T (41114
£98°250'vET %EV TEY'LTTOT %0 888°LTS %TE TSE'ESSL %97 ¥62'ST8'0T %V'C 8T8'695'S %0°€ET S89'VSE0E %6'T €T6'V0S'Y %89 TEL'609C9 %80 SSTTIST %8y 062'86T°00T 10T
9TT'EOT'EST %Y 6600TS0T %V LLS'€90'9 %E9 80v'820°9T %1'S 626'0TO'ET %T'T 8009V'S %E'ET TTT'65S'€EE %9'T 5992507 %S v 867'588'T9 %80 €ST'LY0'T %8'6€ 8/L'669°00T ot0z
sanuanay |ejoL FEITTe) TleoL sjuein Tleor awoou| |eroL s394 Tlejor sjuwssy |eroL sjuwssy Tlejor sajes |ejoL sadieyd Tleror sajes |eroL sajes N
leloL 10% 10% 0% 159.101u] 0% 128UU0) 10% Agpuers 0% g saxe] 10% 1M 10% ERITVEN 10% 1a1em 0% 193EM |easiy

pajahany 19Mas 8173 8y ansawoqg
S1eaj [edsly UL Ise]

221n0s Aq sanuanay
121381 4338 [edIDIUNA UIBISET

NOILD3S TVOILSILVLS

83



‘uondwnsse 21eJ JUNODSIP [eLIEN]IE B3 Ul
a8ueyd ay31 03 anp asuadxa uoisuad Ul IseaJdul Uo]||IW Z'9$ B SaPN[IUl 8TOT Je3A [edsiy ul asuadxa aAneslsiujwpe pue [esauad Jaydiy ay] "asuadxa uoisuad paiedo|jeun ul 3sealdoul Uol||Iw 9°y$ e SapN DUl ZT0Z JeaA [eds)y ul aseanul ayl

:S9J0N
Sunesadp-uoN O g3dom uonepaudagm veom sdQ papieym sdo Jomas @ sdQ 418\ O 1918\ paseyaind m
6102 8102 2102 910¢ gloc 102 €10 4504 1102 0lLoc
0$
05$
00L$
0S1$=
W
00z$
05¢$
00€$
05¢$
00L'€ESVYE %LCT YOV ‘9v8 Ty %L'T €L0°€CT'L %t'8¢C €96'€VL L6 %0°CT 2L9°0ey Ty %6'T 682899 %Yl 9088V Ty %SET YLY'86€ ‘I %9°LT YIv'697°09 6T0C
09T°LTY SYE %9'TT [4 0¥ 740014 %ET ¥08758'L %S°LT YLT'ES8'V6 %L'TT L66'T06EY %6'T ST9'LTY'9 %CCT 800°0TT TV %8'CT L8T°20C v %L'6T €9€°91859 810C
0ZY TV9‘vEE %8°CT 08L'LSL Tty %6°C L aATA %L'8C S52'896°G6 %80T 989'€87°9¢ %8'T 67909 %9°CT fadN4xarad %CET 95°680 7 %C LT STY'TISLS L10T
09€°0v8TTE %S'TT 068'TL0°9€ %0°'€ LLS'8LY'E %S'0€ 858'70€S6 %S'6 ¥9€°£89'6C %0'C 916°482°9 %S'ET 9025607y %6'€T £80'T8S‘EV %191 9V VEE0S 910z
06T°€9LL0€E %16 8YT'0TT‘8C %8°C 0008958 %6°8C T6L°0€8°88 %E'6 920°£49'8C %0°C 65L'T0T‘9 %6°€T LY6'EVLTY %871 0TST69'Sy %61 600°010°65 ST0C
9/2'85020€ %88 06€€959C %8°C 00085€8 %L 625°L€0'T8 %V'6 610'25€8C %0°C TLET66'S %L YT TWL0TL Ty %971 L0S'E6T Vi %L'TC 889°058°€9 10T
926'60988¢ %88 0LE06YST %LV 0007S8'TT %L"9C 182°79T°LL %86 615°26€8C %L'T 092°266'S %071 veL6LTOY %V ST676607 %€"0C LY8'Sy'8S €T0C
0S2¥90°€6¢ %STT S6LTSLI9E %C'S 00098¢2ST %0°SC 729'69€€L %E'6 865°CTTLT %0°CT S0T'8vL'S %YL 908°80€ ‘T %6'€T TET'68L 0 %0°'8T €66°L69°CS [4174
120°0L1°09¢ %16 S29'0TL'ET %S'€ 789°081'6 %L'SC 1667S€‘59 %E'0T 8£5°L0L9 %E'T 20S°€0T‘9 %6°ST €88°LVT'TY %6°ST 0T6V9E T %6°LT 0586879 T10C
0€L'vT8'LST %S0T ¥T2'T90LT %S°E LS9'TET' %0°€C LLL'LYESS %L'TT 0£9'952°0¢ %L'T 6€0'99Y'S %'ST LYL'L59'6€ %S'ST L¥Y'196'6€ %C 8T 6L1'9€6'9Y 0T0C
sasuadx3 |exon sasuadx3 |eloL 9340 |eloL Howy |eloL Juwpy |eloL suonesado |eloL suonesado |eloL suonesadg |eloy JEICITY JCEY
|eloL 0% 8Bunesado 0% 19N 0% L] 0% L IEIED) 0% a91em 0% 19Mas 0% 11 0% paseyaind |easiy

-UoN |e10] -adag paphray
S1ea\ [edsl4 uay iseq

uonduny Aq sasuadx3
PUIsIg 1318\ [edDIUNIA] UId)Se]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

84



*P/€ ueyl 191ea48 $97IS 1919W Y3 IM SISWOISNI |18 D13SIWIOP ||B J0J SI010R) U31aW 381eyd paxiy Ajlep ayi pasiAal 1011s1g Yl ‘8T0Z Adenuer u| g

*S|9A3| MO}

uodn paseq 51502 Wa1sAs Ja1eMalsem Yim sadieyd usije 49119q 03 syuednddo pjoyasnoy 4o Jaquinu ay3 sasn ASojopoy1aw Iy 94n10NJIS 9L J1eM |IB}al
213s3Wop 3y} jusawijdwod 03 pajusawa|dwi sem AS0|0pOYIaW JIMIS 33 }I0|q MU e ‘€TOZ AJenigad U] "3DIAIS JO YIUOW dUO 404 93] dSeIIAE UB S| UMOYS d1eY i
*suo||e8 gf/ 10 J33eM JO 1934 21gNd 00T S! MuUN Bul||iq ¥ “siun 8ul||iq Oz 104 d1ed 25eIdAE UB S| UMOYS 1Y °E
"7/€ 8ulpnpul pue 01 dn s1313W 10} S| UMOYS 31eJ 3Y1 ‘BTOT 9AID34T “LTOZ YSnoayy T Suipnppul pue 01 dn sia1aw 40} 984eyd paxi) Ajlep syl uo paseq sl umoys aley g
'SuOl||lw U pajuasald ate suojeo T
*191BM P3|2Ada1 SpN|oUl 30U SS0P SAOCE PAHOdaJ UOIIBWIOU| BY ]

:S910N

S9°¢e 879 8L°CT ¥879T %ECT 99v‘E 6LV 0LLT Teo'ee 85C'8¢C €9%°C 669V 960°T¢C 610¢
61°CE YeE'LS 98'T1 8€5°qT %09 908‘T (0]74%:14 TTLT 6Tv'9C LV6°6C 8ET‘T 106V 806°C¢C 810¢
LV'TE 0L9S €8'T1 T18'sT %6°0T LTTE 695°GC 196°T 8T9°€t 589'8¢ 61T STAN 99€‘T¢C L10C
[4N0 99°LS 6S'TT €8Y'ST %E'6 9Tv'e S69°€T 980°C 809°T¢C TTT'9 S8C°C 08y 9T0°6T 9102
T0°LC 9L°€S 9T'1T VEEIT %V°€ TL6 6811 67T 0v0‘9¢ 918t LTt 68L°E 9z T 174
06°G¢ 0S°¢S LL°0T 63€91 %69 19T°C 208°0¢ 08T 786'8¢C 690°c€ 08T 2619 £5S0°SC v10c
cLve 661 ¢sot €9€°91 %9°L €9€°C 8€6°8¢C 098 8L0°8¢C 10€°TE 606°T €89°S 60L°€C €10¢
96°€C 0S’Ly eS0T STY'9T %E'S 8vS‘T 8L 069 YSTLT 76€°6¢ €38L°T we's S9€°Ce (41114
06°CC 9T'8y eS0T 50891 %89 656°T ST8'9C JAS] 856°GC VLL'8T €V6°T oce’s 1197¢C T10¢
€L7CC [43°14 ¢S°0T 9ev‘9T %S'L 96¢°C LTIT'8¢ 9TTT 100°LC €Iv'0e 9187 GSS'S wo'ee 010C
FETTER T T pajeasy % SAY leloL lelo) 81| 13 8y Jnsawoq lexol si9yjesaq BIETY paseydind ICETN
adesn aseg 191eM3lse panqun pawnsuo) suojjen Paonpoud suojjen leasi4

& mem —> Jo suojjen 1918\

9)ey 12341 [e10L

SIEdA |BISI4 Ud) ISe
pa1e2.] J91IBMIISE W\ PUE PAWINSUO) PUB PAJNPOIJ J238 M

PUISIQ 491N [edDIUNA] UISISE]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

85



*SJ3WI0ISND |1B13J D13SAWIOP ||B 404 S1030EY Ja1aW d81eYd paxiy Ajlep ay3 pasiaaJ 1013sIg 3Y3 ‘8T0T AMenueru| ‘¢

“J2wo3snd Jad a1es Ajyjuow a8esane pajysSiam e se

paje|nojed s| yuow Jad aSesaAe Y| SeaJe IDIAIDS JIMIS G SI JO IBD 10) DIIAIDS JOMIS 104 1.4 3IIAISS Ajlep PaxIy e sIawolsnd ||e pasieyd

1013514 3Y3 ‘A|snolnald *sjuedndd0 pjoyasnoy 40 Jagquinu sasn yaiym ‘pajuawajdul sem AS0|opoyIaW JaMas 3} }I0|q MU e ‘€T0Z Aleniqa4 u| 'z

'suoj|eS g/ 10 J21BM JO 1334 21N OOT SI HUN Suljig ¥ "sHun Bulj|iq OZ 404 95eI9AE UE S| UMOYS d)eY ‘T

‘uoida.Ip pleog Jad Jo uondope 40 a3ep 3Y3} UO DAIFIBYJD dW 03] pue Ajjenuue s10303.iQ 40 pieog ayi Aq paydope aie sajey

“J23BM P3|2A234 BPN|OUI 30U S0P SAOGE Paiodal UoIeWIO4U| BY L

1S910N
§9€e $  6TTE $  LpTIE $  TTOE $  T0LC $  06SC S UYL $  96'€T $ 06T $ €L S (yruow 1ad 3ne) sarey Jomas
7879 $  vELS §  0L9S $  954S S 9L€S $ 0STS $ 66y $ 0SLv $ 98y $ rEGY S ((3un Suinq sad) a3es a8esn
or'ZLY'T ¥0'06€°T - - - - - - - - 4
06'L¥0'T ST'686 - - - - - - - - 0T
06'669 59°099 S0TTL 90669 09°'TL9 88°'LV9 8T'€€9 10°'S€9 87'€€9 8T'€€9 8
06'8EY 8TYIY 81°89S ST°85S ST9ES 80°L1S €5°50S 16'90S £€5°50S £€5°505 9
ov'1ee 96°80C 98°€0€ 09°86C £€8'98C 67°9LC ov'oLe ST'TLT ov'0LT ov'oLT Wb
OT'€VT SO'GET ¥S'T6T 0T'68T 65181 0Z'SLT STTLT WL STTLT STTLT K
0S'€L SE'69 6L°LS €£°95 SYvS 79 or'1s SS'TS or'1S or'1S 4
ov'Ly Ly €0°TE 05°0€ 0562 67'8C :A4 9L'LT 89'LC 89/ W2/t
(A [4%) T
097t $ 98TT $ €IT $ Z9TT $ OUTT $ LL0T $ TSOT $  SSOT §  TSOT $  TSOT JT=>
(az1s 4919w 91e4 BSEQ AjYauoy
sajey 1218\
610 810 L10Z 9102 ST0Z ¥10Z €102 T10Z 110 010z Jeaj [easty

S1ed |edsly uaj ise
sajey JaMIS pue S
121381Q 4918 [BdIdDIUN UIBISE]

NOILD3S TVIILSILVLS

86



"SJUNOJDE [BUOIIN}ISU| PUB [BLISNPU] ‘[EIDJ3WWOD S3PN[IX3 pue Ajuo sjunode adesspue 03 saijdde s1awo3snd [euapISaY-UON ‘BT/T/T 2A1HT ,

"UOI1NJISUOD SS3| PUE UINJUMOP J1WOU0ID 3y} 03 Sulle|aJ SSWOY PAUMO-3Ued JO [9A3] 01 dNP dJe SJUNOWE pasealda(,

:910N
8LE'EST 0¢ G/ST €€S L9 14 [8L°E 8 ‘avT |elol
6¢ - - - 6¢ - - - aJesajoym
Q1T 6 € - S - z T [ean3jnou3y
YET'EST 0Tt TLST €€s €19 8rT e8L's €LY'SPT ansawoq

|eroL ~_mh=u_:u_hm< uones| Aeisodwa) Aoualdy |ensnpuj |enJawwo) ¢[eIUPISAY-UON
uoRoNIISU0) a119nd 13 |eauapisay
6T0C 1ed |edsly
A1o3a1e) 1awoisn) Aq adA] 921138 1938\ pOlEAIUN pUR pBledI]

€56'€ST SLS 8LE'EST ¥0¢ SLS'T €€9 L¥9 8Y1T L8L'E v8ySrT 610C

G8TTST 118 ¥£9°0ST LT¢C 96T 0TS 299 14" L19°E LTO'EVT 810¢

€68'8vT ocy ELV'SYT [4%] 9zsC 6t S9 9¢€1 €LS'E zeeorT L10C

¥099vT 6LE STTvT 062 ¥81'C [435% €99 LET wuv'e LYVT'BET 910¢

TI9'vW1 9G€ SSTWYT 6SL 9ir'C (4474 S99 8€T 0Tv'e STV 9ET ST0C

€69TVT 9T€ LLETVT |X44 (4574 9ty 6/9 9€1 LYE'E 959VET v10C

T80‘TVT £L6¢C ¥8L0vT 69 eT €LE 99 [44" 80€°E 6LT€ET €10¢

T9L'6ET €8¢ 8LV'6ET 769 0TEC €9€ 5?9 14’ [X4> 080°C€T (41174

€€8'8ET S9¢ 895 ‘8€T 049 S8C°C A4 969 (42" ove's 80€‘TET (710C

188°0VT 99¢ ST9'OVT 619 092°C €LE £6S ot 9/T'e oze'eetT 010¢C
leloL papAiiay leioL |eanynduSy uonesui| Aesodwa) g Aouasy lenasnpuj |eJawwo) ,|eNuapIsay-uoN ICEVNGEOT
uondNIIsuo) dlignd '3 leluapisay

191e)\\ pajeasun pue pajeas|

siea [easi4 uaj iseq

adA] 231M3s 1918 AQ S4BWI0ISN)
PSIq 1918\ [edPIUNA UI)SE]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

87



1013sIg J91e/ [edIdiuniA UIB1SeT 1924n0S

*1913s1Q J21eAN |edidiuniA UI91SIAN Y3 A

paseyoind sem 1011SIp JO1BM SIY] SISW03ISNI 1013sIq 191e A\ AJUNOD) BIBLUNIA] 01 91B|aJ S9ES T

'JoW01sSN) 3|ess|oyM ‘T

'SJaW03sSNI |ean}ndlSe-uou ||e 01 sajes Ja3em 3|qeiod sapn|dul eleq

:S910N

%C'8 %E"0T %58 %80T [e303 jo a3euadiad

8££'669°00T $ 9878 8LETESLTT S 7S9'0L S9|es J21BM J13S3WIOp B30

622'95'8 S SES'S €LL'TT60T  $ 9S9°L lelol
%9'S v9T'vov 137 8 - - - "00SSY "WWO) UIBIUNOIA MopeyS
%Y LLT'S9E €6¢ o1 - - - [HeWaH jo Aud
%Y'8 L€L'569 /8 S - - - Auedwo) a1 [enINIA 0ASNN
%0°0 - - - %E'Y (7 4:E1 [40}3 "00ssY || SMopeajn Aunod 0T
%L ¥0£'88S 1SS L %8'S 919'9€9 147 1011sIQ |00YDS PAJIUN BPIRAIBA 6
%S SYEvrY v6€ 6 %0°9 896959 o€ el jo ANy 8
%0°0 - - - %L'9 166'SEL €1 apisianly Jo Aunoy £
%0°€T T6L'SLO'T £96 € %89 LTV'TVL 8vS 1013sId |00YdS paiuN A9jleA OUBJON 9
%0°0 - - - %E'8 S60°206 £99 SMOPE3A| PUBIYSIH MAN S
%S'TT T6T°0€0°T L6 14 %€ 0T S9v'6CT'T €99 dHed uoneasddy spim-Asjen v
%66 LT0'8T8 L9L 9 %6'TT v61T'L6T'T veL Asjlep oualo JoAud €
%E VT T6T'6LT'T TIST z %661 80€'69T'C vrL'T £ ¥PH3SIQ J91B W [BDDIUN LIRISAM T
%E 6T 0T8Y6ST S EV8T T %0°0C 6LV'6L1°C $ €697 SHiedyohn T
a8ejuadiag S9NUANY 1994 aldy yuey 98ejuadiad S9NUIAY 1994 aJdy awepN Jawoisn) yue

|enuuy ul sojes |lenuuy ul sajes
191e/\\ |lenuuy J191e\\ |lENUUY
0102 6102

0T0Z‘0€ dunf pue TOT ‘0€ unr jo sy
sJawo3sn) Jaje dsawoq isasie
10M3s1g 43318/ [edIdiUN|A UIR)Se]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

88



1013s1Q Ja1eA [edIDIUN|A] UIS1SeT 1924N0S

"PaINP3YISUN 10 P3INPAYIS S4B SSLIBAISP J3Y1dYM
pue eaJle 221A43s uodn Suipuadap saied Ja1em uolesiul Jo Jaquinu e sey 3011sig dY L

:S910N
%8ty %S'LE %961 %6°'ST |e101 J0 a8ejusdiad
€STLVOT S 9Tv'e S6L'STO'S S Ev's sajes Ja1em uonediul g ‘e |ej0]
€L€9L8 S €821 8L0°586 S 798 |elol
%87 ¥66'TY Sy (0] Asjinod NDOIN
%L9 Tws'ss 8L 9 yded g uoilealday apim As|leA
%C'S resy [40)» 6 AaeQ saye7 awinsed
%9°6 6¢SY8 €0T 174 Adieq 14ayoeqy
%671 ¥9T'0ET i 4 sasludiaiul 883 Ajjeuy oA
%8°8¢ 065°75¢ 1294 T swJeq Y pue )
%8t 12691 LE AlssinN siaylolg 0T
%38t 89€'LY 69 swJed Insung 6
%6t 6€T'8Y LE AlssinN AsjleaucolN 8
%8'S 69C'TS 96 8 %€’S ST6'TS €L youey 883 4a|waq L
%T'9 61L'6S oY 989|0D ojulder ues ‘YAl 9
%99 6679 S8 Aireq Aemssaudx3 S
%6°S 0S9°'TS 69 L %89 06€'L9 4 S931e3s3 9IqON dH 14
%S'8 €16€8 q9 "00SSY || SMOpE3A Aluno) €
%9°TT 6LV'TOT 6C1 € %' 7T 819°0%¢C 981 ueoq auljned 4
%L'9 7889 S 99 S %8°LT T0T'VLC S e 1011517 493/ Ue|0d0IIBN T
98ejuadiad sanuanay 1994 3.y yuey 98ejuadiad sanuanay 1994 3.y swep Jawoisn) Jjuey
|enuuy ui sajes |enuuy uj sajes
191e/\ |[ENUUY J91e/\ [enuuy
0102 6102

0T0Z‘0€ dunf pue 6TOT ‘O€ aunr jo sy
siawolsn) Jaje uonesud| g [eanynausy 3sasie
10MISIg 423/ |eddiun|y uidisey

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

89



1013sIQ J91e/ [edIDIUN|A] UIB1SET 192JN0S

"JUSW1eaJ] JO |[9A3| pue 33esn |eunyndliSe-uou Jo
|eanynoude ‘adid jo 9zis uodn Suipuadap sa3ed Ja3em pajdAdal JO Jaquinu e Ssey 30143SIg YL

90

1S910N
%EEY %T'TS %Y'1E %9°'TS |e101 o 98euadiad
G99'7S0Y S (4K 4 14 7C9've0’L S T18'Ge sa|es Ja3em pajdoAdal |e3o]
ov6‘eSL'T S vt 8€T'L0T'C S €TE‘ET |eroL
%9t CIT18 T6€ 0ot enyuelr leg
%L'S 65768 60¢ 6 271 9s4n0J 109 AN ung
%C'6 £18°09T 5SS € qn|d sIquIBIN VOIS
%C 9€ Ye'se9 61T T D77 493u8) ASu8u3 auidwi3 pueyu)
%9°S [AT4A 9€e L %L'9 0S6°LYT 14014 A3||en oualo o AuD (0)8
%1'S 99168 6TSC 8 %6°L LL0SLT 60°€ 34I|pIIM pue ysi4 jo 1daq 6
%C'8 ov.18T €9¢€ SwiaisAs Ja1e W\ BSURY I3 8
%S°CT vLS'61C TTEE 4 %9°8 S07'68T ¥SS°T aiidw3 18y L
%6°L G99°/€T ave 14 %16 69.66T Tce Jdewpuer qni) }|05 19WsH 9
%69 Y0T‘1CT [44: 0 9 %Y'6 TvL'L0T £99°T suleqposoy )
%69 LYETTT S 669°C S %9°6 8T6'CTT LT9°C BWO7 ese) oyouey 14
%S0T S0.'0€C 686'T UIS1S|OH OAJBN €
%9°0T §8/°€€T S8S JU| pHOMUB3IG BILBWY 4
%61 8€€'8TY S 6TL yded uolieasday apim Asjlea T
aSejuadlad ERTELEN 1994 a0y yuey 38ejuadiad SaNU3aNdY 1994 210y awepN J3wo3ish) yuey
jenuuy ul sajes |lenuuy ui sajes
J91e/\\ |ENUUY 1918\ |ENUUY
0T0¢ 610¢C

0TO0Z‘0€ dunf pue gTOT ‘O€ dunf Jo sy
siawoisn) Jarepn pajdAlIay 1sasie
10M3SIq 433/ [eddiun|y uiaisey

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS



1011513 Ja1e AN [edIDIUN|Al UISISET :924N0S

%8'¢C %9'€ 3NUBA3J |e10] JO 98e1uddJad
867'G88'T9 S 0T9°LE0'T0T S aNuUBAaJ JIaMas |e10]
6VL'STLT $ 6T0°SS9e § |0l

%E'9 0S6'80T oT syuawedy sesig seq oyouey
%¥°'9 9/¥'60T 6 d7 syuswiedy a1ul0d BUUBIS
%L'L L8YTTT L 1snJ] Ajjeay uojujwoq panun
%S"L TSE'8TT 9 SSWOH Juawedy OpeJan|s
%C'8 00v'TVT 14 3ied SWOH 3|IqO|A S91e1S UJ1SOAN
%E VT ST6'She 4 syuswuedy eisiA suolspeolg
%LV €€T'0ST UOIIEIDO0SSY S JduUMQ ej|eqese) 0T
%L'L €9C'CET S %LV GOE'TST S9S140I21UT PUIMISI /W 6
%S 688961 91e3umo] je ajedsuols 8
%T'L 950'1¢T 8 %S TS¥'861 1013sIQ |00YIS pajiun 19WaH L
%E'9 €TY'8TT 1214351d |00YIS SpJaA [BA 9
%L'9 TIv'vire 211 ¥ VI-IV ulj|od S
%58 €0T'SPT € %9°L 8Cv'LLT 11IsIQ |00YydS parjiun As|jeA eraLun 14
%€'0T ces’LLE VOH 8ulpue suj €
%6'9¢ 8,091 S T %L €T ¥19'998 oulse) pue H0saY esueyadd C
%"9C Trr'v96 S SMOpPE3IA puelysiy maN T
98ejuadiad S9NUAAY yuey 98ejuadiad ERTELEYY awep Jawoisn) yue
|lenuuy |enuuy
0T0¢ 610¢

0TO0Z‘0€ dunf pue 6T0OT ‘0€ dunf J0 sy
s12Wo03sN) JaMas 3sasie

10M3sIg 4338\ [edidiuniA] uid)se]

NOILD3S TVOILLSILVLS

91



STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Summary of Imported Water Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars per acre-foot)

Rates Effective Full Service
Beginning Domestic
January Treated Untreated
2010 Tier 1 701 484
Tier 2 811 594
2011 Tier 1 744 527
Tier 2 869 652
2012 Tier 1 794 560
Tier 2 920 686
2013 Tier1 847 593
Tier 2 997 743
2014 Tier 1 890 593
Tier 2 1,032 735
2015 Tier 1 923 582
Tier 2 1,055 714
2016 Tier 1 942 594
Tier 2 1,076 728
2017 Tier 1 979 666
Tier 2 1,073 760
2018 Tier 1 1,015 695
Tier 2 1,101 781
2019 Tier 1 1,050 731
Tier 2 1,136 817

Source: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Annual Domestic Consumption (AF)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Average

Fiscal Active AF
Year Usage (AF) Accounts per Account
2010 78,621 140,615 0.56
2011 75,461 138,568 0.54
2012 79,752 139,478 0.57
2013 82,591 140,784 0.59
2014 84,650 142,377 0.59
2015 76,832 144,255 0.53
2016 63,673 146,225 0.44
2017 68,813 148,473 0.46
2018 77,020 150,674 0.51
2019 66,803 153,378 0.44

Number of Active Accounts

155,000

150,000

145,000

140,000

135,000

130,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Average AF/Account
0.80
0.70
0.60
0.50
0.40
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Notes:

Amounts exclude wholesale accounts.

Several factors may impact fluctuations in the average AF per account each year including
conservation efforts, the level of bank-owned homes relating to the economic downturn,
and changes in weather patterns.




STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
* See Debt Footnotes for dollar amounts

General Percentage Debt
Fiscal Revenue Certificates of Obligation Capital of Personal per
Year Loans Bonds' Participation’ Bonds Lease Total Income? Capita®
2010 40,279,228 - 700,311,094 47,672,284 - 788,262,606 1.18% 1,068
2011 35,818,082 - 689,723,765 45,481,394 - 771,023,241 1.18% 1,014
2012 33,651,101 61,452,320 630,227,034 43,145,504 - 768,475,959 1.14% 1,000
2013 68,749,388 157,648,717 518,338,874 40,949,446 - 785,686,425 1.09% 1,011
2014 105,195,668 198,525,127 459,710,090 38,446,800 55,072 801,932,757 1.08% 1,022
2015 119,352,359 420,407,712 305,016,307 35,896,296 41,574 880,714,248 1.15% 1,108
2016 90,787,233 663,582,542 207,389,271 34,920,903 23,752 996,703,701 1.24% 1,240
2017 85,227,888 987,759,455 - 33,905,509 12,782 1,106,905,634 1.29% 1,356
2018 86,719,548 972,307,446 - 32,845,116 1,018 1,091,873,128 1.21% 1,320
2019 80,934,716 957,255,438 - 31,739,723 - 1,069,929,877 1.12% 1,275

$1,200

$1,000

$800

Million

$600

$400

$200

S0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

W Loans @ Revenue Bonds @ COPs B GO Bonds [ Capital Lease

Notes:
Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements.
"In fiscal year 2017, the District issued six refunding revenue bonds to redeem all outstanding certificates of participation and five
refunding revenue bonds. A new series revenue bond was issued to finance the construction of water and sewer capital improvements.
2 Based upon Riverside County personal income amounts. The District is located in the County of Riverside.

See the personal income amounts on the Demographic and Economic Statistics schedule. Amounts for prior years

are updated with the most recent available information.
3 Based upon approximate population of District service area. See the Demographic and Economic Statistics

schedule for amounts.




STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Percentage Debt
Fiscal Obligation Assessed of Assessed per
Year Bonds* Value? Value Capita®
2010 47,672,284 56,743,387,948 0.08% 65
2011 45,481,394 54,294,174,863 0.08% 60
2012 43,145,504 53,890,135,705 0.08% 56
2013 40,949,446 53,506,155,585 0.08% 53
2014 38,446,800 55,926,804,094 0.07% 49
2015 35,896,296 61,313,471,497 0.06% 45
2016 34,920,903 66,226,873,815 0.05% 43
2017 33,905,509 70,005,613,492 0.05% 42
2018 32,845,116 74,231,240,058 0.04% 40
2019 31,739,723 79,484,183,867 0.04% 38

Total Bonds Outstanding

$50

$40

$30

Million

$20

$10

S0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Notes:

Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in Note 4 to the
Basic Financial Statements.

T Beginning 2010, amounts shown include net bond premium/discount.

2 Bonds are issued by improvement district, but the amounts shown are for the District's
entire service area. Beginning 2016, included District No. 04-5408: EMWD Detachment#2

in the assessed value.
% Based upon approximate population of the District's entire service area. See the

Demographic and Economic Statistics schedule for amounts.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

State of California Department of Finance
U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

Personal Per Capita
Calendar Income’ Personal Unemployment
Year Population1 (thousands of $) Income’ Rate’
2009 737,868 66,723,925 31,627 13.4%
2010 760,128 65,369,622 30,451 14.7%
2011 768,264 67,568,045 30,685 13.6%
2012 776,986 71,949,357 32,179 12.2%
2013 784,834 74,075,529 32,707 10.3%
2014 794,790 76,493,787 33,383 8.2%
2015 803,973 80,637,967 34,732 6.5%
2016 816,411 86,092,487 36,603 6.1%
2017 827,343 90,273,976 37,827 5.2%
2018 839,226 95,140,992 39,261 4.4%
Notes: ' Data is for the District's service area. Amounts for prior years are restated with
the most recent available information.
2 Data is for the County of Riverside. The District is located within the County.
Amounts for prior years are restated for most recent available information.
Sources:  State of California Employment Development Department
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2010 2011 2012 2013° 2014 2015° 2016 2017 2018 2019
Operations and Maintenance Division
Water Operations and Distribution 63 64 64 65 66 61 65 65 65 66
Water Reclamation 87 90 90 86 87 88 87 85 83 85
Assets & Facilty Management (formerly Maintenance Services) 17 17 17 15 15 22 19 19 19 19
Auto Shop and Fabrication Shop (reassigned) 14 16 15 16 15 - - - - -
Wastewater Collection 15 15 13 14 14 15 14 14 14 15
Mechanical Services (includes Fab Shop) 30 30 30 28 29 31 31 31 30 31
Electrical Services 21 22 23 24 24 23 24 22 26 25
Pipeline Maintenance (formerly included Building & Grounds) 35 37 34 34 34 22 22 22 21 23
Total Operations & Maintenance Division 282 291 286 282 284 262 262 258 258 264
Engineering Division
General Engineering 55 53 52 43 a4 46 42 45 46 a4
Construction Management and Inspections 38 39 39 35 33 29 32 30 31 32
Development Services’ 25 26 20 17 18 19 21 21 20 24
Total Engineering Division 118 118 111 95 95 94 95 96 97 100
Planning and Resources Division
Planning and Resources’ 19 19 20 20 19 20 24 24 24 22
Environmental and Regulatory Compliance 8 9 9 9 10 11 12 12 8 12
Water Quality and Laboratory 14 15 15 14 14 12 12 12 12 11
Source Control 8 9 9 9 10 10 10 11 11 10
Total Planning and Resources Division 49 52 53 52 53 53 58 59 55 55
Executive and Administration
Executive and Administration ® 10 10 11 12 12 13 15 16 12 12
Public and Governmental Affairs > 3 3 11 11 11 12 12 12 13 11
Human Resources (formerly included Risk Management) 13 13 13 11 12 8 6 7 7 6
Safety/Risk and Emergency Management - - - - - 4 5 5 5 5
Billing/Customer Service 8 60 62 58 55 53 56 56 54 61 50
Meter Services ® 24 24 24 21 19 16 14 13 14 21
Finance and Accounting 21 22 26 22 22 22 22 22 22 23
Information Systems 34 33 34 33 31 30 27 23 24 23
Purchasing, Warehouse and Records Management 26 27 30 28 27 28 28 25 28 27
Fleet Services (formerly Auto Shop) - - - - - 11 11 11 12 11
Community Involvement ® 9 8 - - - - - - - -
Total Executive and Administration 200 202 207 193 187 200 196 188 198 189
Total Filled Positions End of Year 649 663 657 622 619 609 611 601 608 608
Total Authorized Positions Start of Year 676 690 667 636 633 629 631 629 632 636
Change in Authorized Positions from Prior Year 9 14 (23) (31) (3) (4) 2 (2) 3 4
Number of Vacant Positions as of June 30 27 27 10 13 10 20 20 28 24 28
Vacancy Rate as of June 30 4.0% 3.9% 1.5% 2.0% 1.6% 3.2% 3.2% 4.5% 3.8% 4.4%

Notes:
All directors and managers are included with their divisions.
Temporary, contract and summer help employees are not included.
. The General Engineering departments were reorganized in 2012.
. The Planning and Resources workgroup was reorganized in 2016.
. Community Involvement was restructured into Public and Governmental Affairs in 2012.

. The decrease in filled positions is due to 43 employees accepting a retirement incentive and retiring effective June 30,2012.

. Organizational changes in December 2015 resulted in the movement of staff from General Engineering to Executive and Administration.

1
2
3
4
5. Organizational changes in March 2015 affected all divisions and eliminated 3 vacant positions.
6
7. Department name changed in 2018 from New Business to Development Services

8

. Seven employees moved from Billing/Customer Service to Meter Services in 2019




POTABLE WATER SYSTEM

Miles of pipeline:
transmission and distribution:"
as-built
construction in progress
Number of storage tanks
Maximum storage capacity
(million gallons)
Number of active pumping plants
Number of active wells:
domestic
desalter”
Domestic well production capacity:
gallons per minute
million gallons per day
acre feet per year
Number of water treatment plants:
desalter
filtration
Treatment plant capacity:
(million gallons per day)
desalter plants
filtration plants
Number of service connections: ®
active domestic accounts
active agriculture accounts

SEWER SYSTEM

Miles of sewer lines:*
as-built
construction in progress
Number of treatment plants
Treatment plant average
design capacity (MGD)2
Average million gallons per day treated
Percentage of capacity utilized
Number of active lift stations

RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM

Miles of pipeline:
transmission and distribution:"
as-built
construction in progress
Number of active pumping facilities
Maximum storage capacity (acre feet)3

GENERAL INFORMATION

Service area (annexed property):
acres
square miles
Gross service area (square miles)
Average years of service of employees

Notes:

1. Miles of pipelines as-built excludes open construction in progress (CIP). CIP reflects what was recorded as open projects as of the year

end date.

2. The Sun City RWRF (3 MGD) was formerly included in the total capacity although it was decommissioned. Amounts are now reflected as

STATISTICAL SECTION

2010

2,421
2,260
161
77

193
84

18

20,361
29.3
32,843

8.0
32.0

133,810
146

1,727
1,607
120

5

60

45.0
75%

46

199
178
21
20
5,714

346,732
541.8
555
10.47

EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
OPERATING AND CAPITAL INDICATORS

2011

2,428
2,280
148
77

191
83

21

22,326
321
36,013

8.0
32.0

135,233
124

1,736
1,626
110

5

60

46.0
77%

46

202
179
23

20
5,714

346,732
541.8
555
10.84

2012

2,430
2,296
134
77

191
83

21

22,285
321
35,945

8.0
32.0

136,478
122

1,756
1,639
117

60

45.0
75%

47

206
186
20

20
5,721

346,732
541.8
555
11.39

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013

2,443
2,366
77
77

191
83

18

23,292
335
37,570

8.0
36.0

140,653
131

1,780
1,725
55

68

44.8
66%

48

213
196
17

21
5,736

346,745
541.8
555
11.31

2014

2,448
2,376
72
77

191
83

18
11

23,382
33.7
37,715

8.0
36.0

142,244
133

1,799
1,735
64

68

44.9
66%

48

215
198
17

24
6,184

346,745
541.8
555
12.11

average design capacity. The Perris RWRF expansion to 25 MGD was completed in 2014.
3. Recycled storage decreased in 2010 relates to lower capacity for Winchester ponds due to operational assessments. Increases since 2014
are due to more accurate measurements from recent surveys, plus conversions of secondary storage to tertiary storage.

4. Desalter wells formerly inactive were placed back into service during 2014.
5. Starting 2013, the number of customer connections billed within the year was used instead of the number of customers as of June 30th.

Source: Eastern Municipal Water District

2015

2,463
2,391
72
77

191
83

18
11

19,299
27.8
31,129

8.0
36.0

144,123
132

1,813
1,749
64

70

44.8
64%

47

217
200
17

24
6,448

346,745
541.8
555
12.50

2016

2,465
2,399 "
66
78

199
83

16
12

19,604
28.2
31,622

8.0
36.0

146,098
127

1,816
1,772 "
44

5

70

42.4
61%

46

217
208

9

24
6,448

346,808
541.9
555

12.25

2017

2,380
2,314
66
79

203
84

16
12

14,708
21.2
23,725

8.0
36.0

148,348
125

1,790
1,741
49

5

69

433
63%

46

207
197
10

24
7,571

346,808
541.9
555
11.90

2018

2,476
2,397
79
79

203
86

14
12

15,625
22.5
25,203

8.0
36.0

150,558
116

1,819
1,759
60

5

69

42.6
62%

50

211

14
24
7,599

347,280
542.6
555
11.68

2019

2,442
2,368
74
79

203
87

14
12

17,100
24.6
27,582

8.0
36.0

153,263
115

1,831
1,771

69

44.6
65%

50

225
225

24
7,599

347,298
542.7
555
11.04

100
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Eastern Municipal Water District
Customer Account Write Offs as a Percentage of Sales
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal % of
Year Retail Sales Write Offs Sales
2010 142,354,003 1,035,076 0.7%
2011 143,427,078 734,381 0.5%
2012 149,580,286 703,666 0.5%
2013 159,559,632 717,146 0.4%
2014 170,496,733 851,419 0.5%
2015 169,744,235 823,650 0.5%
2016 171,146,902 714,213 0.4%
2017 182,818,310 475,022 0.3%
2018 200,388,220 331,561 0.2%
2019 201,083,661 266,364 0.1%
Total S 1,690,599,060 S 6,652,498 0.4%

Note: Excludes sales collected by other agencies.

Bad Debt Reserves as a Percentage of Accounts Receivable Balance
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year End

Year A/R Balance Reserves % of A/R
2010 9,603,615 678,848 7.1%
2011 11,170,339 610,537 5.5%
2012 13,072,905 676,182 5.2%
2013 14,195,028 842,850 5.9%
2014 13,805,842 850,608 6.2%
2015 9,916,469 609,075 6.1%
2016 10,127,047 324,530 3.2%
2017 11,882,229 215,340 1.8%
2018 13,595,401 181,535 1.3%
2019 11,763,091 188,441 1.6%

Note: Reserves equal accounts over 60 days past due.
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2270 Trumble Road
Perris, CA 92570
www.emwd.org

SERVING

OUR COMMUNITY
TODAY AND
TOMORROW




